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Explanatory Note
 

Enveric Biosciences, Inc., previously known as AMERI Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), is filing this Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K, dated December 30, 2020, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 6, 2021, solely for the purpose of providing the
financial statements and information required by Item 9.01(a) and the pro forma financial information required by Item 9.01(b) in connection with the Company’s
previously reported tender offer (the “Offer”) to purchase all of the outstanding common shares of Jay Pharma, Inc. (“Jay Pharma”), upon completion of which
Jay Pharma became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
 

As a result of the completion of the Offer, the historical financial statements of Jay Pharma will be reflected in the Company’s quarterly and annual
reports for periods ending after the effective time of the Offer. Accordingly, beginning with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2020, the Company will report results of Jay Pharma and the Company on a consolidated basis.

 
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits
 

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.
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The audited financial statements of Jay Pharma, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, together with the reports of Marcum
LLP with respect thereto, are included as Exhibit 99.1 and are incorporated by reference herein. The unaudited condensed financial statements of Jay Pharma
as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 are included as Exhibit 99.2 hereto and are incorporated by reference herein.

 
(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31 2019 and balance

sheets and statements of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 are included as Exhibit 99.3 hereto and are incorporated by reference
herein.

 
(d) Exhibits.

 
Exhibit No.  Description
   
23.1  Consent of Marcum LLP
99.1  Audited financial statements of Jay Pharma, Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
99.2  Unaudited condensed financial statements of Jay Pharma, Inc. as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2020
99.3  Unaudited condensed combined pro forma financial statements of Enveric Biosciences, Inc. as of and for the nine months ended September 30,

2020 and for the year ended December 31, 2019
 

* * *
 

 

 
 

SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 
  ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
    
Date: January 11, 2021 By: /s/ John Van Buiten
   John Van Buiten
   Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 23.1
 

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM’S CONSENT
 
We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Current Report of Enveric Biosciences, Inc. (formerly known as AMERI Holdings, Inc.) on Amendment No. 1
to Form 8-K of our report dated April 21, 2020 with respect to our audits of the financial statements of Jay Pharma, Inc. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and
for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2019 appearing in the Registration Statement of AMERI Holdings, Inc. on Form S-4 [File No. 333-
238742], including all amendments thereto and Form S-4MEF [File No. 333-251776].
 
/s/ Marcum LLP

 
Marcum LLP

New York, NY
January 11, 2021
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Exhibit 99.1
 

JAY PHARMA, INC.
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND DECEMBER 31, 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Jay Pharma, Inc.
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Jay Pharma, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
operations and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders’ deficit and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2019, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
 
Explanatory Paragraph – Going Concern
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As more fully described in Note 2 to
the financial statements, the Company has a significant working capital deficiency, has incurred significant losses and needs to raise additional funds to meet its
obligations and sustain its operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans
in regard to these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.
 
Basis for Opinion
 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (the “PCAOB”)
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
 
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing
procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
/s/ Marcum LLP  
Marcum LLP  
 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.
 
New York, NY
April 21, 2020
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

 
  December 31,  

  2019   2018  
       
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash  $ 43,714  $ 113,671 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   65,075   20,092 

Total current assets   108,789   133,763 
         

Total assets  $ 108,789  $ 133,763 
         
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit         
         
Liabilities         

Current liabilities:         
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 1,157,645  $ 199,217 
Advance from related party   22,409   - 
Notes payable   446,415   - 
Convertible notes payable   293,921   - 

Total current liabilities   1,920,390   199,217 
         

Total liabilities   1,920,390   199,217 
         
Commitments (Note 8)         
         
Shareholders’ Deficit         

Common stock, no par value, unlimited authorized shares, 25,195,681 and 24,972,504 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively   -   - 
Additional paid-in capital   3,094,902   2,423,709 
Accumulated deficit   (4,894,881)   (2,484,208)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (11,622)   (4,955)

Total shareholders’ deficit   (1,811,601)   (65,454)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit  $ 108,789  $ 133,763 

 
The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

 

  
For the Years Ended 

December 31,  

  2019   2018  
       
Expenses         

Operating expenses  $ 2,296,534  $ 1,919,577 
         
Loss from operations   (2,296,534)   (1,919,577)
         
Other expense         

Loss on extinguishment   (32,316)   - 
Interest expense   (81,823)   - 

Total other expense   (114,139)   - 
         
Net loss   (2,410,673)   (1,919,577)
         
Other comprehensive income         

Foreign exchange loss   (6,667)   (3,877)
         
Comprehensive loss  $ (2,417,340)  $ (1,923,454)

         
Net loss per share - basic and diluted  $ (0.10)  $ (0.08)

         
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted   25,085,980   22,607,147 

 
The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

 

  Common Stock   
Addition paid-

in   Accumulated   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive     

  Shares   Amount   capital   Deficit   Loss   Total  
                   
Balance as of January 1, 2018   19,110,000  $            -  $ 534,663  $ (564,631)  $ (1,078)  $ (31,046)
                         

Common stock issued for cash   2,892,244   -   822,665   -   -   822,665 
Common stock issued for services   813,098   -   360,828   -   -   360,828 
Common stock issued in exchange for
sublicense   2,157,162   -   652,624   -   -   652,624 
Stock based compensation - stock options   -   -   52,929   -   -   52,929 
Foreign exchange loss   -   -   -   -   (3,877)   (3,877)
Net loss   -   -   -   (1,919,577)   -   (1,919,577)

                         
Balance as of December 31, 2018   24,972,504  $ -  $ 2,423,709  $ (2,484,208)  $ (4,955)  $ (65,454)
                         

Common stock issued for services   172,297   -   88,465   -   -   88,465 
Warrants issued in conjunction with notes
payable   -   -   24,875   -   -   24,875 
Common stock issued in connection with
note extension   50,880   -   22,266   -   -   22,266 
Stock based compensation - stock options   -   -   535,587   -   -   535,587 
Foreign exchange loss   -   -   -   -   (6,667)   (6,667)
Net loss   -   -   -   (2,410,673)   -   (2,410,673)

                         
Balance as of December 31, 2019   25,195,681  $ -  $ 3,094,902  $  (4,894,881)  $ (11,622)  $ (1,811,601)

 
The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 
  For the Years Ended December 31,  

  2019   2018  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:         
Net loss  $ (2,410,673)  $ (1,919,577)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities:         
Interest accrued   13,684   - 
Extinguishment of note payable   32,316   - 
Amortization of note discount   68,453   - 
Stock-based compensation   624,052   53,294 
Stock issued for services   -   365,382 
Stock issued for sublicense   -   644,006 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:         
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   104,340   (5,938)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   919,968   151,668 
Net cash used in operating activities   (647,860)   (711,165)

         
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:         

Proceeds from issuance of common stock   -   822,665 
Proceeds from notes payable   238,000   - 
Proceeds from convertible notes payable   300,000   - 
Advance from related party   22,000   - 
Net cash provided by financing activities   560,000   822,665 

         
Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash   17,903   (3,744)
         
Net (decrease) increase in cash   (69,957)   107,756 
         
Cash - beginning of year   113,671   5,915 
         
Cash - end of year  $ 43,714  $ 113,671 

         
Supplemental non-cash financing activities:         
         

Warrants issued in connection with notes payable issuances  $ 24,875  $ - 

         
Shares of common stock issued for note payable extensions  $ 22,266  $ - 

         
Promissory note issued for prepaid services  $ 150,000  $ - 

 
The accompanying notes are in integral part of these financial statements.
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JAY PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 1 - BUSINESS
 
Nature of operations
 
Jay Pharma Inc. (“Jay Pharma” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Canada) on April 19, 2017 as Jay Resources Inc.
The Company is a pharmaceutical company developing innovative, evidence-based cannabinoid medicines. The head office of the Company is located in
Naples, Florida.
 
NOTE 2 – LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN
 
The Company has incurred continuing losses from its operations and as of December 31, 2019, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $4,894,881 and
working capital deficiency of $1,811,601.
 
Since inception, the Company has met its liquidity requirements principally through the issuance of notes payable and the sale of its shares of common stock.
 
The Company has no present revenue and the Company’s ability to continue its operations and to pay its obligations when they become due is contingent upon
the Company obtaining additional financing. Management’s plans include seeking to procure additional funds through debt and equity financings and to continue
to develop its technologies under its sublicense agreement (see Note 4). Without further funding, the sublicense agreement will have no commercial value.
 
There are no assurances that the Company will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company or at all, or that cash flows generated from its
operations will be sufficient to meet its current operating costs and required debt service. If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient amounts of additional
capital, it may be required to reduce the scope of its planned product development, which could harm its financial condition and operating results, or it may not
be able to continue to fund its ongoing operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern to sustain
operations for at least one year from the issuance date of these financial statements. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.
 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S.
GAAP”) and the applicable rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and expenses during the periods reported. By their nature, these estimates are subject to
measurement uncertainty and the effects on the financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be significant. Significant areas
requiring management’s estimates and assumptions include determining the fair value of transactions involving common stock and valuation of stock-based
compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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JAY PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
 
Foreign Currency Translation
 
The reporting currency of the Company is the United States dollar. The financial statements of companies located outside of the U.S. are measured in their
functional currency, which is the local currency. The functional currency of the Company is the Canadian dollar. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated
using public exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated using average monthly exchange rates. Shareholders’ equity
accounts and non-monetary assets are translated at their historical exchange rates. Translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive
loss in the accompanying balance sheets.
 
Cash and cash equivalents
 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company did not
have any cash equivalents as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.
 
Income Taxes
 
The Company utilizes an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. The provision for income taxes is based upon
income or loss after adjustment for those permanent items that are not considered in the determination of taxable income. Deferred income taxes represent the
tax effects of differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates in effect for the years in
which the differences are expected to reverse.
 
The Company evaluates the recoverability of deferred tax assets and establishes a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged upon an audit and
cause changes to previous estimates of tax liabilities. In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made. If actual taxable income
by tax jurisdiction varies from estimates, additional allowances or reversals of reserves may be necessary.
 
Tax benefits are recognized only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The amount recognized is
measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized upon settlement. A liability for “unrecognized tax benefits” is
recorded for any tax benefits claimed in the Company’s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards. As of December 31, 2019
and 2018, no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was required to be recorded.
 
The Company’s policy for recording interest and penalties associated with tax audits is to record such items as a component of operating expenses. There were
no amounts accrued for penalties and interest for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. The Company does not expect its uncertain tax
positions to change during the next twelve months. Management is currently unaware of any issues under review that could result in significant payments,
accruals or material deviations from its position.
 
The Company has identified its Canadian federal tax return and its provincial tax returns in Ontario as its “major” tax jurisdictions. The Company is in the process
of filing its corporate tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. Net operating losses for these periods will not be available to
reduce future taxable income until the returns are filed.
 
 F-8  

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

JAY PHARMA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 
The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation, which addresses the accounting for stock-based
payment transactions, requiring such transactions to be accounted for using the fair value method. Awards of shares for property or services are recorded at the
more readily measurable of the fair value of the stock and the fair value of the service. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine
the grant date fair value of stock-based awards under ASC 718. The fair value is charged to earnings depending on the terms and conditions of the award, and
the nature of the relationship of the recipient of the award to the Company. The Company records the grant date fair value in line with the period over which it
was earned. For employees and management, this is typically considered to be the vesting period of the award. For consultants, the fair value of the award is
recorded over the term of the service period and unvested amounts are revalued at each reporting period over the service period. The Company estimates the
expected forfeitures and updates the valuation accordingly.
 
Net Loss per Share
 
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares and, if dilutive, potential common shares outstanding during the period.
Potential common shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants (using the treasury stock method)
and incremental common shares issuable upon the conversion of convertible notes payable (using the if converted method). The computation of basic net loss
per share for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 excludes potentially dilutive securities. The computations of net loss per share for
each period presented is the same for both basic and fully diluted.
 
Potentially dilutive securities outlined in the table below have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share because the effect of their
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.
 

  
For the year ended
December 31, 2019   

For the year ended
December 31, 2018  

Warrants to purchase shares of common stock   1,373,673   992,244 
Convertible notes   250,000   - 
Options to purchase shares of common stock   3,604,348   3,118,234 
Total potentially dilutive securities   5,228,021   4,110,478 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash accounts in a financial institution, which at times, may
exceed the Federal depository insurance coverage of $250,000. The Company has not experienced losses on these accounts and management believes the
Company is not exposed to significant risks on such accounts.
 
Fair Value
 
The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and accounts payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of
such financial instruments.
 
Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt
 
In accordance with ASC 470, a substantive modification of a debt instrument is deemed to have been accomplished with debt instruments that are substantially
different if the present value of the cash flows under the terms of the new debt instrument is at least 10 percent different from the present value of the remaining
cash flows under the terms of the original instrument. A substantive modification is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original instrument along with the
recognition of a gain/loss. For the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company has recorded a loss on extinguishment of $32,316
and $0, respectively, as discussed in Note 4.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective accounting pronouncements, when adopted, will have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements, other than those disclosed below.
 
On February 25, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This
update will require organizations that lease assets to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those
leases. The new guidance will also require additional disclosures about the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The provisions of
this update are effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
 
In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, “Codification Improvements to Topic, 842, Leases”, which clarifies how to apply certain aspects of the new leases
standard, ASC 842. The amendments address the rate implicit in the lease, impairment of the net investment in the lease, lessee reassessment of lease
classification, lessor reassessment of lease term and purchase options, variable payments that depend on an index or rate and certain transition adjustments,
among other things.
 
In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, “Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements”, which provides entities with relief from the costs of implementing
certain aspects of the new leasing standard, ASC 842. Specifically, under the amendments in ASU 2018-11, (1) entities may elect not to recast the comparative
periods presented when transitioning to ASC 842 and (2) lessors may elect not to separate lease and nonlease components when certain conditions are met.
The Company adopted ASC 842 on January 1, 2020 and has determined that there is no material impact on the Company’s financial position and results of
operations.
 
In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, “Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes”, which simplifies the accounting for income taxes,
eliminates certain exceptions within ASC 740, Income Taxes, and clarifies certain aspects of the current guidance to promote consistency among reporting
entities. ASU 2019-12 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. Most amendments within the standard are required to be applied on a
prospective basis, while certain amendments must be applied on a retrospective or modified retrospective basis. The Company is evaluating the effects, if any,
of the adoption of ASU 2019-12 guidance on the Company’s financial statements.
 
NOTE 4 – SUBLICENSE AGREEMENT
 
On January 12, 2018, the Company entered into a sublicense agreement (which formalized the sublicense terms as agreed to in 2017) (the “Agreement”) with
TO Pharmaceuticals USA LLC (“TOP”), a Delaware limited liability company. The Agreement requires TOP to sublicense to the Company certain patent and
other intellectual property rights for the exclusive use by the Company in cancer-related applications. These rights include intellectual property consisting of
patents regarding cannabis pharmaceutical products. The sublicense does not provide for any ability for the Company to sublicense these rights to third parties
without the express written consent of TOP. In exchange for the sublicensed patents, the Company issued to TOP 7,280,000 shares of its common stock along
with an obligation to issue to TOP 40% of shares of common stock issued to investors during future financings up to $1.25 million. In connection with the
additional rounds of financing, the Company issued to TOP an additional 2,157,162 shares of its common stock during the year ended December 31, 2018. As
of December 31, 2019 and 2018, TOP owned approximately 35% and 40%, respectively of the total outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. The
Chief Executive Officer of TOP became the Company’s Interim President effective February 1, 2019 (see Note 8). At present, the sublicense lacks commercial
value, economic substance, has no alternative future use, and given that the Company is an early stage business with minimal assets, requiring significant
funding to develop and commercialize these technologies, including obtain necessary FDA regulatory approvals, the value of the shares issued to acquire the
sublicense was charged to operations for the year ended December 31, 2018 in the amount of $652,624.
 
Entities often sell goods and services in exchange for equity instruments issued by the purchaser of the goods and services. The entity granting the equity
instruments follows the accounting guidance for those transactions in ASC 718-10. Such transactions are measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. The entity receiving equity instruments in exchange for
providing goods or services follows the guidance for such transactions in accordance with ASC 845 “Nonmonetary Transactions”. The Company accounted for
the transaction described above in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718-10, and as such, the fair value of the shares issued was determined to be more
reliably measurable in determining the value of the sublicense acquired.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 5 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
 
As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s notes payable and convertible notes payable consisted of the following:
 
  Gross   Discount   Net  
February 2019 Note  $ 66,000  $ -  $ 66,000 
March 2019 Note   150,000   -   150,000 
April 2019 Convertible Notes   300,000   (6,079)   293,921 
July 2019 Note   191,640   (2,700)   188,940 
December 2019 Note   44,000   (2,525)   41,475 
Total  $ 751,640   (11,304)  $ 740,336 

             
Notes payable  $ 451,640  $ (5,225)  $ 446,415 

             
Convertible notes payable  $ 300,000  $ (6,079)  $ 293,921 

 
As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s notes payable and convertible notes payable interest expense and amortization of debt discount consisted of the
following:
 

  Interest Expense   
Amortization of Debt

Discount   Total  
February 2019 Note  $ -  $ 6,000  $ 6,000 
March 2019 Note   -   -   - 
April 2019 Convertible Notes   13,370   17,142   30,512 
July 2019 Note   -   43,836   43,836 
December 2019 Note   -   1,475   1,475 
Total  $ 13,370  $ 68,453  $ 81,823 

 
Notes Payable
 
On February 7, 2019, the Company received $60,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a director for $66,000, including an original issue discount of
$6,000 (the “February 2019 Note”). The note bears no stated interest rate and was due on May 8, 2019. Given that the Company was unable to pay its
obligation under the note, the February 2019 Note is currently in default. The Company amortized the full $6,000 original issue discount in the statement of
operations and comprehensive loss through December 31, 2019.
 
On February 1, 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with its executive director. In connection with the consulting agreement, on March 5,
2019, the Company issued a note payable to its executive director for $150,000 (the “March 2019 Note”). The note bears no interest and is due and payable on
March 4, 2020. The consulting agreement expired on February 1, 2020. As of April 21, 2020, the March 2019 Note is currently in default.
 
On July 8, 2019, the Company entered into a note agreement (the “July 2019 Note”) with a limited liability company (the “Lender”). One of the principals of the
Lender is the brother of a member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Note’s face value was $157,714 and the original issue discount was $19,714 for
total gross proceeds of $138,000, implying an interest rate of 12.5% per annum. The Company may, without premium or penalty, at any time and from time to
time, prepay all or any portion of the Note. The maturity date of the Note was September 8, 2019. As there remained an outstanding balance on the Note at its
maturity date, the Company was in default. In connection with the Note, the Company issued warrants to purchase 131,429 shares of the Company’s common
stock at an exercise price of $0.71 per share. The warrants are exercisable for a period of five years. The fair value of the award was estimated on the date of
grant using the Black–Scholes option-pricing model. The Black–Scholes option-pricing model requires the development of assumptions that are inputs into the
model. The Company will amortize the total debt discount of $21,288 over the term of the July 2019 Note. These assumptions include the stock volatility, the
expected life of the option, and the dividend yield on the underlying stock, as shown in the table below. The Company amortized this discount over the term of
the July 2019 Note.
 
 F-11  

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 5 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
 
Notes Payable, continued
 

  Warrants  
Stock Price  CAD $ 0.58 
Exercise Price  CAD $ 0.93 
Dividend Yield   0.00%
Expected Volatility   96.0%
Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate   2.31 
Number of Shares   131,429 
Value (USD)  $ 1,654 
Expected life (in years)   0.2 

 
Stock price – Based on price of common stock of recent shares sold.
 
Expected volatility – Based on the historical volatility of comparable companies in a similar industry.
 
On September 20, 2019, the Company entered into an amendment to the July 2019 Note (the “Amendment”). The Amendment extends the maturity date for the
Note until the earlier of (a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) November 7, 2019. In consideration for the
Amendment, the Company agreed to pay an extension fee of $18,926, which was added to the outstanding balance of the Note. In addition to the extension fee,
the Company agreed to grant warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to approval by the Company’s Board of Directors. If
the Company’s Board of Directors did not approve the grant of the warrants prior to October 18, 2019, the Company agreed to pay an additional extension fee of
$15,000 in lieu of issuing the warrants. On October 19, 2019, given that the Company did not grant the warrants, $15,000 was added to the face value of the
note. Given that the cash flows of the amended July 2019 Note are greater than 10% different from the original July 2019 Note, the Company must treat the
modification as an extinguishment of debt and determine the gain or loss on the exchange of instruments. At the time of the extinguishment calculation, the
Company previously amortized the entire debt discount of the July 2019 Note, as the original maturity date was September 8, 2019. Based on the analysis
performed, the Company determined that there was a loss on extinguishment of debt of $32,257. The Company determined the fair value of the amended note
was less than its face value. The Company will amortize this discount over the term of the amended note.
 
On November 21, 2019, the Company entered into an amendment for the July 2019 Note that extends the maturity date for the Note until the earlier of (a) the
completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) December 9, 2019. In consideration for this amendment, the Company agreed to
pay an aggregate extension fee of $33,926, which includes the $15,000 extension fee from the September Amendment which was added to the outstanding
balance of the Note. The Company evaluated the change in cash flows between the amendment and the July 2019 Note noting that there was not a 10% or
greater change in the discounted cash flows and thus, fails the extinguishment test.
 
On December 9, 2019, the Company entered into an additional amendment for the July 2019 Note that extends the maturity date for the Note until the earlier of
(a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) January 7, 2020. The Company also agreed to pay the previously
outstanding extension fees of $33,926 on or before March 1, 2020.
 
See Note 9 for an additional extension of the July 2019 Note. On January 15, 2020, the Company repaid the original principal balance of $157,714.
 
On December 12, 2019, the Company received $40,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a lender, including an original issue discount of $4,000
(“December 2019 Note”). The December 2019 Note bears interest at a rate of ten percent (10%) on its face value per annum. In the case of an event of default,
the interest rate shall increase to 24% per year. The December 2019 Note matured on January 31, 2020. The Company is currently in default on the December
2019 Note and is in discussions with the lender on amending the terms of the December 2019 Note.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 5 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE, CONTINUED
 
Convertible Notes Payable
 
During April 2019, the Company received $300,000 in exchange for convertible notes payable (the “April 2019 Convertible Notes”) and warrants to purchase
250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The notes payable bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum and are due and payable one year from the date of
issuance. The notes are convertible at any time by the holder into shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $0.60 per share and a collective 250,000
shares would be issued upon full conversion. The term of the April 2019 Convertible Notes is one year from issuance. If the Company sells or issues common
stock at a price lower than the conversion price of the notes, the conversion price shall be reduced to that price. The notes payable will automatically convert into
shares of the Company’s common stock in the event that the Company consummates a reverse merger with a publicly traded company.
 
The fair value of the warrants issued was estimated on the date of grant using the Black–Scholes option-pricing model and recorded as a debt discount. The
Black–Scholes option-pricing model requires the development of assumptions that are inputs into the model. These assumptions include the stock volatility, the
expected life of the option, and the dividend yield on the underlying stock, as shown in the table below. The Company will amortize this discount over the term of
the April 2019 Convertible Notes.
 

  
April 2019 Convertible

Notes  
Stock Price  CAD $ 0.58 
Exercise Price  CAD $ 0.95 
Dividend Yield   0.00%
Expected Volatility   96.0%
Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate   2.31%
Number of Shares   250,000 
Value (USD)  $ 23,221 
Expected life (in years)   1.0 

 
Stock price – Based on price of common stock of recent shares sold.
 
Expected volatility – Based on the historical volatility of comparable companies in a similar industry.
 
During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company issued 50,880 and 0 shares, respectively, to its lenders in connection with note extensions,
as described in Note 5. The Company valued these shares at $22,266 and $0, respectively.
 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
 
Authorized Capital
 
The holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any,
as may be declared by the Board of Directors out of legally available funds. Upon the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, holders of common
stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets of the Company that are legally available for distribution. As of December 31, 2019, an unlimited number of
common shares were authorized for issuance.
 
Issuance of Common Stock
 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued an additional 2,157,162 shares of common stock to TOP under the sublicense agreement. The
Company valued these shares at $652,624.
 
In January 2018, the Company closed a private placement for 1,900,000 shares of common stock for CAD $0.25 (USD $0.20) per common share for gross
proceeds of CAD $475,000 (USD $376,203).
 
In October 2018, the Company closed a private placement for 992,244 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 992,244 shares of common stock for
CAD $0.58 (USD $0.45) per common share for gross proceeds of CAD $579,044 (USD $446,462). The warrants are exercisable immediately and expire on
October 31, 2020.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED
 
Shares Issued in Exchange for Services
 
During the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company issued 172,297 and 813,098 shares, respectively, to consultants in
exchange for services. The Company valued these shares at $88,465 and $360,828, respectively.
 
Shares Issued in Connection with Note Extension
 
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company issued 50,880 shares to its lenders in connection with the note extensions, as described in Note 4.
The Company valued these shares at $22,266.
 
Stock Options
 
In July 2018, the Company granted options to purchase 556,917 shares of the Company to a director. The options have a ten year term, an exercise price of
CAD $0.58 (USD $0.43 as of December 31, 2019), and vest as follows: (a) one-half of the option shares vest on the date of grant; and (b) one-half of the option
shares vest on the date of the Company’s initial public offering.
 
The Company utilized the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine the fair value of these stock options, using the assumptions as outlined below.
 
  July 2018  
Stock Price  $ 0.25 (CAD) 
Exercise Price  $ 0.58 (CAD) 
Dividend Yield   0%
Expected Volatility   81%
Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate   2.58%
Expected life (in years)   2.8 
 
Stock price —Based on price of common stock of recent shares sold.
 
Discount rate —Based on the daily yield curve rates for U.S. Treasury obligations with maturities, which correspond to the expected term of the Company’s stock
options.
 
Dividend yield —The Company has not paid any dividends on common stock since its inception and does not anticipate paying dividends on its common stock in
the foreseeable future.
 
Expected volatility —Based on the historical volatility of comparable companies in a similar industry.
 
Expected term —The Company has had no stock options exercised since inception. The expected option term represents the period that stock-based awards
are expected to be outstanding based on the simplified method provided in Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107, Share-Based Payment, which averages an
award’s weighted-average vesting period and expected term for “plain vanilla” share options.
 
Forfeitures —ASC Topic 718 Compensation - Stock Compensation requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
 
In February 2019, the Company granted options to purchase 779,683 shares of the Company to a director. The options have a ten year term, an exercise price
of CAD $0.58 (USD $0.43 as of December 31, 2019), and vest upon the certain events as follows: (a) 14% of the option shares vest on the date of grant; (b)
29% of the option shares vest upon a the Company completing a bridge financing event within 60 days; (c) 29% of the option shares vest upon the Company’s
hiring of a Chief Executive Officer; and (d) 29% vest upon dosing a glioblastoma multiforme patient.
 
In April 2019, the Company granted options to purchase 1,248,624 shares of the Company to a director. The options have a ten year term, an exercise price of
CAD $0.58 (USD $0.43 as of December 31, 2019), all of which vest on the date of grant. On November 12, 2019 this director resigned, and options to purchase
596,998 of shares of the Company’s common stock were forfeited.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED
 
Stock Options, continued
 
The Company utilized the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of these stock options, using the assumptions as outlined below.
 
  February 2019   April 2019  
Stock Price  $ 0.58 (CAD)  $ 0.58 (CAD) 
Exercise Price  $ 0.58 (CAD)  $ 0.58 (CAD) 
Dividend Yield   0%  0%
Expected Volatility   96%  101%
Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate   2.51%  2.31%
Expected life (in years)   5.2   5.0 
 
Stock price – Based on price of common stock of recent shares sold.
 
Discount rate —Based on the daily yield curve rates for U.S. Treasury obligations with maturities, which correspond to the expected term of the Company’s stock
options.
 
Dividend yield —The Company has not paid any dividends on common stock since its inception and does not anticipate paying dividends on its common stock in
the foreseeable future.
 
Expected volatility —Based on the historical volatility of comparable companies in a similar industry.
 
Expected term —The Company has had no stock options exercised since inception. The expected option term represents the period that stock-based awards
are expected to be outstanding based on the simplified method provided in Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107, Share-Based Payment, which averages an
award’s weighted-average vesting period and expected term for “plain vanilla” share options.
 
Forfeitures —ASC Topic 718 Compensation - Stock Compensation requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
 

  
Number of

Shares   

Weighted
Average Exercise

Price (USD)   

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

(USD)   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual Term

(years)   

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

(USD)  
Outstanding – January 1, 2018   2,561,317  $ 0.43  $ 0.08                    
Granted   556,917  $ 0.43  $ 0.06         
Outstanding - December 31, 2018   3,118,234  $ 0.43  $ 0.08   8.75  $ - 
                     
Exercisable at December 31, 2018   1,169,526  $ 0.43  $ 0.08   8.81  $ - 

                     
Outstanding – January 1, 2019   3,118,234  $ 0.43  $ 0.08         
Granted   2,028,307  $ 0.44  $ 0.33         
Forfeited   (1,542,193)  $ 0.44  $ 0.08         
Outstanding - December 31, 2019   3,604,348  $ 0.44  $ 0.16   8.49  $ - 
                     
Exercisable at December 31, 2019   2,450,736  $ 0.44  $ 0.16   8.49  $ - 

 
The Company’s stock based compensation expense related to stock options for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $535,587 and $52,929,
respectively. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $166,734 in unamortized stock option expense, which will be amortized over a period of 0.4 years.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED
 
Warrants
 
The following table summarizes information about shares issuable under warrants outstanding at December 31, 2019:
 

  

Warrant 
shares 

outstanding   

Weighted 
average

exercise price
(USD)   

Weighted
average

remaining life   Intrinsic value  
Outstanding at January 1, 2019   992,244  $ 0.67                   
Issued   381,429  $ 0.71         
Exercised   -             
Expired or cancelled   -             
Outstanding at December 31, 2019   1,373,673  $ 0.68   1.81  $ - 

                 
Exercisable at December 31, 2019   1,373,673  $ 0.68   1.81  $ - 

 
The warrants issued in 2019 were issued as a part of a common stock unit offering whereby shares were sold for cash during the current year and expire five
years from the date of issuance. The warrants were accounted for as a component of equity, as the instrument contains no features which would preclude such
classification.
 
NOTE 7 – INCOME TAXES
 
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
 
  As of December 31,  
  2019   2018  
Deferred tax assets:         

Net operating loss carryovers  $ 1,004,029  $ 505,871 
Deferred tax assets, gross   1,004,029   505,871 

         
Less: valuation allowance   (1,004,029)   (505,871)

Deferred tax assets, net   -   - 
         
Deferred tax assets (liabilities), net  $ -  $ - 

 
The change in the Company’s valuation allowance is as follows:
 

  
For the year ended
December 31, 2019   

For the year ended
December 31, 2018  

Beginning of year  $ 505,871  $ 106,971 
Increase in valuation allowance   498,158   398,900 
End of year  $ 1,004,029  $ 505,871 

 
A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes with the amounts computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to loss from operations before the
provision for income taxes is as follows:
 

  
For the year ended
December 31, 2019   

For the year ended
December 31, 2018  

Canada federal statutory rate   (15.0)%  (15.0)%
Provincial taxes   (11.5)%  (11.5)%
Permanent differences         

Non-deductible expenses   5.9%   5.7%
Valuation allowance   20.6%   20.8%
Effective income tax rate   0.0%   0.0%
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 7 – INCOME TAXES, CONTINUED
 
As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had net operating loss carryovers of $3,788,788 and $1,908,948, respectively, for Canadian federal income
tax purposes, which begin to expire in 2028. The ultimate realization of the net operating loss is dependent upon future taxable income, if any, of the Company.
Based on losses from inception, the Company determined that as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize
benefits from the deferred tax assets. The Company will not record income tax benefits in the financial statements until it is determined that it is more likely than
not that the Company will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred income tax assets. As a result of the analysis, the Company determined that
a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets was required of $1,004,029 and $505,871 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
 
NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS
 
On December 19, 2018, the Company entered into a consulting and advisory agreement with a financial consulting firm. Under the terms of the agreement, the
consulting firm provides the Company with a consultant who serves as the Company’s Interim Chief Financial Officer. The monthly fee under this agreement is
$8,500 per month. The agreement automatically renews and may be terminated by either party with 60 days’ notice. See subsequent events for an amendment
to this agreement.
 
On February 1, 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with its executive director. Subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors
or Compensation Committee, the executive director will be granted options to purchase up to one percent of the common stock of the Company, on a fully
diluted basis, as calculated on the date of the Company’s initial public offering. These warrants have not yet been issued, and will not be issued until after the
consummation of an initial public offering. In connection with the consulting agreement, on March 5, 2019, the Company issued a note payable to its executive
director for $150,000. The note bears no interest and is due and payable on March 4, 2020. The agreement expired on February 1, 2020.
 
On February 1, 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with the Chief Executive Officer of TOP to serve as the Company’s Interim Chief
Executive Officer (the “Interim CEO”). Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Interim CEO receives a monthly fee of $6,000 until the Company completes a
Bridge Financing (as defined) of at least $1.5 million. Following the consummation of the Bridge Financing, the Interim CEO is entitled to a monthly fee of
$8,000. Subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors or Compensation Committee, the Interim CEO was granted options to purchase 779,683
shares of the Company’s common stock (see Note 4). The agreement expired on February 1, 2020.
 
On January 5, 2019, the Company entered into a business advisor services agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the consultant will provide
business advisory, marketing, and investor relations services in exchange for $15,000 per month, of which $7,500 is payable in cash and $7,500 is payable in the
Company’s common shares. See subsequent events for an amendment to this agreement.
 
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
Note Payable Extension
 
On January 8, 2020 the Company entered into an amendment to the July 2019 Note (the “January 8 Amendment”). The January 8 Amendment extends the
maturity date for the July 2019 Note until the (a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) April 1, 2020. In consideration
for the January 8 Amendment, the Company agreed to grant 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to approval by the Company’s board of
directors.
 
Consulting Agreement
 
On January 8, 2020, the Company’s Interim Chief Financial Officer resigned, and the Company amended its consulting and advisory agreement to reflect that
resignation. The agreement, as amended, remains in effect and may be terminated with 60 days’ notice. The consulting and advisory firm will continue to provide
accounting and consulting services through 2020.
 
Business Advisory Services Agreement
 
On January 6, 2020, the Company terminated its business advisory services agreement and agreed to settle the amounts due under the agreement by (a) paying
$12,500 in cash upon the completion of a bridge financing; and (b) issuing 127,856 shares of the Company’s common stock.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, CONTINUED
 
Amalgamation Agreement
 
On January 10, 2020, the Company entered into an amalgamation agreement (the “Amalgamation Agreement”) with Jay Pharma Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger
Sub”), a wholly owned subsidiary of AmeriHoldings, Inc. (“Ameri”), and Jay Pharma Exchange Co, Inc. (“ExchangeCo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ameri. The
Amalgamation Agreement provides that the Company will merge into Merger Sub and be amalgamated and operate as one company. The shareholders of the
Company will own approximately 84% of the post-closing company’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock.
 
The Amalgamation Agreement will automatically be terminated if the amalgamation is not completed within 180 days.
 
Simultaneously with the execution of the Amalgamation Agreement, Jay Pharma entered into a Secured Promissory Note, dated January 10, 2020 (the “Note”),
by and among Jay Pharma and certain lenders, pursuant to which, on January 10, 2020, Jay Pharma received aggregate gross proceeds of $1,500,000.
Pursuant to the Note, the aggregate obligations of Jay Pharma under the Note are to automatically, immediately prior to the consummation of the amalgamation,
convert into shares of Jay Pharma common stock, subject to the terms and provisions of the Note. Pursuant to Note, upon conversion of the term loans made by
the lenders subject to the terms of the Note, Jay Pharma is required to cause Ameri to issue each lender warrants to purchase Ameri Common Stock. Upon
consummation of the amalgamation, Jay Pharma has agreed to cause Ameri to register the resale of the warrant shares.
 
Prior to the execution and delivery of the Amalgamation Agreement, certain investors have entered into agreements with Jay Pharma pursuant to which such
investors have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of such agreements, to purchase, immediately prior to the consummation of the amalgamation,
shares of Jay Pharma’s common stock (or common stock equivalents) and warrants to purchase Jay Pharma’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$3.5 million. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by such agreements is conditioned upon the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in
the Amalgamation Agreement. After consummation of the amalgamation, Jay Pharma has agreed to cause Ameri to register the resale of the Ameri Common
Stock issued and issuable pursuant to the warrants issued to the investors in the Jay Pre-Closing Financing.
 
Contemporaneously with the Amalgamation Agreement, the Company entered into sublicense agreements with Tikkun Pharma, Inc. (“Tikkun Pharma”). The
sublicense agreements with Tikkun Pharma allows the Company to utilize (a) Tikkun Pharma’s sublicense with TOP for certain autoimmune applications, and (b)
acquire and use Tikkun Pharma’s internally developing intellectual property, branding, and formulations in regard to Skincare.
 
On April 20, 2020, the Company received a notice from the lenders of the Note, stating that the Company was in default for not closing the amalgamation with
Ameri by March 31, 2020, and that the entire Note was due in full. The Company is currently in negotiation with the lenders to resolve the default notice.
 
COVID-19 Coronavirus
 
In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, was reported to have surfaced in Wuhan, China. Since then, the COVID-19 coronavirus has spread
to multiple countries, including the United States and Canada. As the COVID-19 coronavirus continues to spread in the United States and Canada, we may
experience disruptions that could severely impact our business. The global outbreak of the COVID-19 coronavirus continues to rapidly evolve. The extent to
which the COVID-19 coronavirus may impact our business will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with
confidence, such as the ultimate geographic spread of the disease, the duration of the outbreak, travel restrictions and social distancing in the United States,
Canada, and other countries business closures or business disruptions and the effectiveness of actions taken in the United States, Canada, and other countries
to contain and treat the disease.
 
Note Payable
 
On February 24, 2020, the Company received $50,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a lender. The note bears interest at a rate of ten percent (10%) on
its face value per annum. In the case of an event of default, the interest rate shall increase to 24% per year. The note matures on July 31, 2020.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS, CONTINUED
 
Consulting Agreements
 
On January 10, 2020, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with an individual to provide management services to the Company. The Company
shall pay the consultant $15,000 per month and $100,000 on the date of the closing of the Amalgamation Agreement. Following the closing of the Amalgamation
Agreement, the Company will enter into an employment agreement with this individual to be the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, whereby the
individual will receive $250,000 per annum.
 
On January 10, 2020, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a director whereby the director will serve as President and Secretary of the
Company. The Company shall pay the director $15,000 per month and grant the director options to purchase 650,000 shares of the Company at an exercise
price of $0.05 per share. The options are vested immediately and expire five years from the date of issuance.
 
On February 12, 2020, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with the Chief Financial Officer of Ameri. The agreement shall be effective of January
1, 2020 and will expire 12 months following the closing date of the Amalgamation Agreement. The consultant shall receive $10,000 per month. This agreement
may be terminated with 30 days’ notice by either party.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

 

  
September 30,

2020   
December 31,

2019  
  (unaudited)     
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash  $ 340,898  $ 43,714 
Due from related party   67,085   - 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   64,182   65,075 

Total current assets   472,165   108,789 
         

Total assets  $ 472,165  $ 108,789 
         

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Deficit         
         
Liabilities         

Current liabilities:         
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 1,633,398  $ 1,157,645 
Advance from related party   -   22,409 
Notes payable   2,077,925   446,415 
Convertible notes payable   350,000   293,921 

Total liabilities   4,061,323   1,920,390 
         
Commitments (Note 5)         

         
Shareholders’ Deficit         

Common stock, no par value, unlimited authorized shares,         
26,887,649 and 25,195,681 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2020 and December
31, 2019, respectively   -   - 

Additional paid-in capital   3,829,609   3,094,902 
Accumulated deficit   (7,377,068)   (4,894,881)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (41,699)   (11,622)

Total shareholders’ deficit   (3,589,158)   (1,811,601)
Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit  $ 472,165  $ 108,789 
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(unaudited)
 

  
For the Nine Months Ended

September 30,  

  2020   2019  
       
Expenses         

Operating expenses  $ 2,094,044  $ 1,895,355 
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Loss from operations   (2,094,044)   (1,895,355)
         
Other expense         

Extinguishment of note payable   -   32,257 
Interest expense   388,143   47,858 

Total other expense   388,143   80,115 
         

Net loss   (2,482,187)   (1,975,470)
         
Other comprehensive income         

Foreign exchange (loss) gain   (30,077)   5,204 
         
Comprehensive loss  $ (2,512,264)  $ (1,970,266)

         
         
Net loss per share - basic and diluted  $ (0.10)  $ (0.08)

         
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted   25,916,419   25,060,193 
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(unaudited)
 

  Common Stock   
Addition
paid-in   Accumulated   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive     

  Shares   Amount   capital   Deficit   Loss   Total  

                   
Balance as of January 1, 2019   24,972,504  $ -  $ 2,423,709  $ (2,484,208)  $ (4,955)  $ (65,454)
                         

Common stock issued for services   172,297   -   88,465   -   -   88,465 
Warrants issued in conjunction with issuance of
notes payable   -   -   24,875   -   -   24,875 
Stock based compensation - stock options   -   -   535,587   -   -   535,587 
Foreign exchange loss   -   -   -   -   5,204   5,204 
Net loss   -   -   -   (1,975,470)   -   (1,975,470)

                         
Balance as of September 30, 2019   25,144,801  $ -  $ 3,072,636  $ (4,459,678)  $ 249  $ (1,386,793)

                         
Balance as of January 1, 2020   25,195,681  $ -  $ 3,094,902  $ (4,894,881)  $ (11,622)  $ (1,811,601)
                         

September 2020 private placement   166,667   -   227,500   -   -    227,500 
Conversion of related party advance and notes
payable   1,081,818    -   238,000   -   -   238,000 
Common stock issued for accounts payable   388,483   -   173,482   -   -   173,482 
Common stock issued in conjunction with note
payable modification   55,000   -   45,725   -   -   45,725 
Warrants issued in conjunction with notes payable   -   -   32,149   -   -   32,149 
Beneficial conversion feature issued with note
payable   -   -   17,851   -   -   17,851 
Foreign exchange loss   -   -   -   -   (30,077)   (30,077)
Net loss   -   -   -   (2,482,187)   -   (2,482,187)

                         
Balance as of September 30, 2020   26,887,649  $ -  $ 3,829,609  $ (7,377,068)  $ (41,699)  $ (3,589,158)
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)
 

  
For the Nine Months Ended

September 30,  

  2020   2019  
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:         
Net loss  $ (2,482,187)  $ (1,975,470)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities:         
Extinguishment of notes payable   -    32,257 
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Accrued interest   102,285   8,874 
Amortization of debt discount   285,858   38,985 
Stock-based compensation   -   624,052 

Change in operating assets and liabilities:         
Due from related party   (65,075)   - 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   (1,841)   67,591 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   522,162   571,121 

Net cash used in operating activities   (1,638,798)   (632,590)
         
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:         

Proceeds from convertible notes payable   50,000   300,000 
Proceeds from note payable   1,812,410   198,000 
Advances from related party   -   22,000 
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of offering costs   227,500   - 
Repayment of note payable   (157,714)   - 

Net cash provided by financing activities   1,932,196   520,000 
         
Effect of foreign exchange rate on cash   3,786   7,802 
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash   297,184   (104,788)
         
Cash - beginning of period   43,714   113,671 
         
Cash - end of period  $ 340,898  $ 8,883 

         
Supplemental non-cash financing activities:         
         

Beneficial conversion feature issued with note payable  $ 17,851  $ - 
Warrants issued in conjunction with notes payable  $ 32,149  $ 24,875 
Common stock issued for accounts payable  $ 173,482  $ - 
Common stock issued in conjunction with note payable modification  $ 45,725  $ - 
Notes payable issued to consultant for prepaid services  $ -  $ 150,000 
Conversion of related party advances and notes payable into common stock  $ 238,000  $ - 
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 1 - BUSINESS

 
Nature of operations
 
Jay Pharma Inc. (“Jay Pharma” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Canada) on April 19, 2017 as Jay Resources Inc.
The Company is a pharmaceutical company developing innovative, evidence-based cannabinoid medicines. The head office of the Company is located in
Naples, Florida.
 
NOTE 2 – LIQUIDITY AND GOING CONCERN
 
The Company has incurred continuing losses from its operations and as of September 30, 2020, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $7,377,068 and
working capital deficiency of $3,589,158. The Company also has negative operating cash flow and no revenue, with an insufficient amount of cash to sustain
opertaions.
 
Since inception, the Company has met its liquidity requirements principally through the issuance of notes payable and the sale of its shares of common stock.
 
The Company has no present revenue and the Company’s ability to continue its operations and to pay its obligations when they become due is contingent upon
the Company obtaining additional financing. Management’s plans include seeking to procure additional funds through debt and equity financings and to continue
to develop its technologies and products.

 
There are no assurances that the Company will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company or at all, or that cash flows generated from its
operations will be sufficient to meet its current operating costs and required debt service. If the Company is unable to obtain sufficient amounts of additional
capital, it may be required to reduce the scope of its planned product development, which could harm its financial condition and operating results, or it may not
be able to continue to fund its ongoing operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern to sustain
operations for at least one year from the issuance date of these condensed financial statements. The accompanying financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.
 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP”) and in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) for
interim financial statements. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by U.S. GAAP. However, in the opinion of the management
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of the Company, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and operating results have been included in these unaudited
condensed financial statements. These unaudited condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019. Operating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 are not necessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2020.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of condensed financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and expenses during the periods reported. By their nature, these estimates are
subject to measurement uncertainty and the effects on the financial statements of changes in such estimates in future periods could be significant. Significant
areas requiring management’s estimates and assumptions include determining the fair value of transactions involving common stock and valuation of stock-
based compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
 
Foreign Currency Translation
 
The reporting currency of the Company is the United States dollar. The financial statements of companies located outside of the U.S. are measured in their
functional currency, which is the local currency. The functional currency of the Company is the Canadian dollar. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated
using public exchange rates at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated using average monthly exchange rates. Shareholders’ equity
accounts and non-monetary assets are translated at their historical exchange rates. Translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive
loss in the accompanying condensed balance sheets.
 
Cash and cash equivalents
 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company did not
have any cash equivalents as of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
 
Income Taxes
 
The Company utilizes an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. The provision for income taxes is based upon
income or loss after adjustment for those permanent items that are not considered in the determination of taxable income. Deferred income taxes represent the
tax effects of differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates in effect for the years in
which the differences are expected to reverse.
 
The Company evaluates the recoverability of deferred tax assets and establishes a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged upon an audit and
cause changes to previous estimates of tax liabilities. In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made. If actual taxable income
by tax jurisdiction varies from estimates, additional allowances or reversals of reserves may be necessary.
 
Tax benefits are recognized only for tax positions that are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. The
amount recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely to be realized upon settlement. A liability for “unrecognized
tax benefits” is recorded for any tax benefits claimed in the Company’s tax returns that do not meet these recognition and measurement standards. As of
September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, no liability for unrecognized tax benefits was required to be recorded.
 
The Company’s policy for recording interest and penalties associated with tax audits is to record such items as a component of operating expenses. There were
no amounts accrued for penalties and interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019. The Company does not expect its uncertain tax
positions to change during the next twelve months. Management is currently unaware of any issues under review that could result in significant payments,
accruals or material deviations from its position.
 
The Company has identified its Canadian federal tax return and its provincial tax returns in Ontario as its “major” tax jurisdictions. The
Company is in the process of filing its corporate tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. Net operating losses for these
periods will not be available to reduce future taxable income until the returns are filed.
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 
The Company follows Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation, which addresses the accounting for stock-based
payment transactions, requiring such transactions to be accounted for using the fair value method. Awards of shares for property or services are recorded at the
more readily measurable of the fair value of the stock and the fair value of the service. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine
the grant date fair value of stock-based awards under ASC 718. The fair value is charged to earnings depending on the terms and conditions of the award, and
the nature of the relationship of the recipient of the award to the Company. The Company records the grant date fair value in line with the period over which it
was earned. For employees and consultants, this is typically considered to be the vesting period of the award. The Company estimates the expected forfeitures
and updates the valuation accordingly.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
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NOTE 3 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, CONTINUED
 
Net Loss per Share
 
Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares and, if dilutive, potential common shares outstanding during the period.
Potential common shares consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants (using the treasury stock method)
and convertible notes. The computation of basic net loss per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 excludes potentially dilutive
securities. The computations of net loss per share for each period presented is the same for both basic and fully diluted.
 
Potentially dilutive securities outlined in the table below have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share because the effect of their
inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.
 

  
For the nine months ended

September 30, 2020   
For the nine months ended

September 30, 2019  
Warrants to purchase shares of common stock   1,504,593   1,373,673 
Convertible notes   631,579   500,000 
Options to purchase shares of common stock   3,604,348   3,102,362 

Total potentially dilutive securities   5,740,520   4,976,035 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash accounts in a financial institution, which at times, may
exceed the Federal depository insurance coverage of $250,000. The Company has not experienced losses on these accounts and management believes the
Company is not exposed to significant risks on such accounts.
 
Fair Value
 
The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and accounts payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term nature of
such financial instruments.
 
Subsequent Events
 
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to the date that the condensed financial statements
were issued. Other than as described in these condensed financial statements, the Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required
adjustment or disclosure in the condensed financial statements.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
 
As of September 30, 2020, the Company’s notes payable and convertible notes payable consisted of the following:
 
  Gross   Discount   Net  
April 2019 Convertible Notes  $ 300,000  $ -  $ 300,000 
July 2019 Note   33,925   -   33,925 
December 2019 Note   44,000   -   44,000 
February 2020 Note   50,000   -   50,000 
Alpha Note   2,000,000           -   2,000,000 

Total  $ 2,427,926   -  $ 2,427,925 

             
Notes payable  $ 2,077,926  $ -  $ 2,077,925 

             
Convertible notes payable  $ 350,000  $ -  $ 350,000 

 
As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s notes payable and convertible notes payable consisted of the following:
 
  Gross   Discount   Net  
February 2019 Note  $ 66,000  $ -  $ 66,000 
March 2019 Note   150,000   -   150,000 
April 2019 Convertible Notes   300,000   (6,079)   293,921 
July 2019 Note   191,640   (2,700)   188,940 
December 2019 Note   44,000   (2,525)   41,475 
Total  $ 751,640   (11,304)  $ 740,336 

             
Notes payable  $ 451,640  $ (5,225)  $ 446,415 

             
Convertible notes payable  $ 300,000  $ (6,079)  $ 293,921 
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE, CONTINUED
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s interest expense and amortization of debt discount consisted of the following:
 
 
  For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  

  2020   2019  

  
Interest

Expense   

Amortization
of Debt

Discount   Total   
Interest

Expense   

Amortization
of Debt

Discount   Total  
February 2019 Note  $ -  $ 3,803  $ 3,803  $ -  $ 5,998  $ 5,998 
April 2019 Convertible Notes   5,785   13,836   19,621   8,874   11,161   20,035 
July 2019 Note   -   44,275   44,275   -   21,826   21,826 
December 2019 Note   -   1,414   1,414   -   -   - 
February 2020 Note   2,520   50,423   52,943             
Alpha Note   93,980   172,107   266,087   -   -   - 
Total  $ 102,285  $ 285,858  $ 388,143  $ 8,874  $ 38,985  $ 47,859 

 
Notes Payable
 
On February 7, 2019, the Company received $60,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a director for $66,000, including an original issue discount of
$6,000 (the “February 2019 Note”). The note had no stated interest rate and was due on May 8, 2019. The Company amortized the full $6,000 original issue
discount in the statement of operations and comprehensive loss through December 31, 2019. On July 21, 2020, the Company converted the February 2019
Note into common stock, as further described in Note 6.
 
On February 1, 2019, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with its executive director. In connection with the consulting agreement, on March 5,
2019, the Company issued a note payable to its executive director for $150,000 (the “March 2019 Note”). The note had no interest and was due and payable on
March 4, 2020. The consulting agreement expired on February 1, 2020. On July 21, 2020, the Company converted the March 2019 Note into common stock, as
further described in Note 6.
 
On July 8, 2019, the Company entered into a note agreement (the “July 2019 Note”) with a limited liability company (the “Lender”). One of the principals of the
Lender is the brother of a member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Note’s face value was $157,714 and the original issue discount was $19,714 for
total gross proceeds of $138,000, implying an interest rate of 12.5% per annum. The Company may, without premium or penalty, at any time and from time to
time, prepay all or any portion of the Note. The maturity date of the Note was September 8, 2019. On September 20, 2019, the Company entered into an
amendment to the July 2019 Note (the “Amendment”). The Amendment extends the maturity date for the Note until the earlier of (a) the completion of a bridge
financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) November 7, 2019. On November 21, 2019, the Company entered into an amendment for the July 2019
Note that extends the maturity date for the Note until the earlier of (a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b)
December 9, 2019. In consideration for this amendment, the Company agreed to pay an aggregate extension fee of $33,926, which was added to the principal
balance of the note. On December 9, 2019, the Company entered into an additional amendment for the July 2019 Note that extends the maturity date for the
Note until the earlier of (a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) January 7, 2020. The Company also agreed to pay
the previously outstanding extension fees of $33,926 on or before March 1, 2020.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE, CONTINUED
 
Notes Payable, continued
 
On January 8, 2020 the Company entered into an amendment to the July 2019 Note (the “January 8 Amendment”). The January 8 Amendment extends the
maturity date for the July 2019 Note until the (a) the completion of a bridge financing of greater than or equal to $1,500,000, or (b) April 1, 2020. In consideration
for the January 8 Amendment, the Company granted 55,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company accounted for this amendment as a
modification, where the shares paid as a fee were valued at $45,725 and recorded as a discount against the note payable and amortization over the term. On
May 6, 2020, the Company entered into an amendment (the “May 2020 Amendment”) whereby both parties agreed to extend the maturity date of the July 2019
Note to September 30, 2020. The Company accounted for this amendment as a modification, as the present value of the future cash flows pre-modification and
post-modification were not greater than or equal to 10%. On January 12, 2020, the Company repaid $157,714 of the July 2019 Note. The remaining balance of
the July 2019 Note remains unpaid and is currently in default.
 
On December 12, 2019, the Company received $40,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a lender, including an original issue
discount of $4,000 (“December 2019 Note”). The December 2019 Note bears interest at a rate of ten percent (10%) on its face value per annum. In the case of
an event of default, the interest rate shall increase to 24% per year. The December 2019 Note matured on January 31, 2020. The Company is currently in
default on the December 2019 Note and is in discussions with the lender on amending the terms of the December 2019 Note.
 
On February 24, 2020, the Company received $50,000 in exchange for a promissory note with a lender (the “February 2020 Note”). The February 2020 Note
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bears interest at a rate of ten percent (10%) on its face value per annum. In the case of an event of default, the interest rate shall increase to 24% per year. The
note matured on July 31, 2020, and the Company is currently in discussions with the lender on amending the terms of the February 2020 Note. The February
2020 Note is convertible into the Company’s common stock at any time at a conversion price of $0.38 per share. The Company also issued the holder of the
February 2020 Note warrants to purchase 130,920 shares, as further described in Note 6. The Company recorded a beneficial conversion feature of $17,851
and valued the warrants issued (using relative fair value) at $32,149. The Company recorded the total value as a note discount and is amortizing the discount
over the term of the February 2020 Note using the effective interest method. The Company valued the beneficial conversion feature and warrants using the
following assumptions:
 

  
Beneficial Conversion

Feature   Warrants  
Stock Price   CAD $ 1.10   CAD $ 1.10 
Exercise Price   CAD $ 0.51   CAD $ 0.51 
Dividend Yield   N/A   0.00%
Expected Volatility   N/A   96.0%
Weighted Average Risk-Free Interest Rate   N/A   2.31 
Number of Shares   N/A   130,920 
Value (USD)  $ 17,851  $ 32,149 
Term (in years)   N/A   5.0 

 
Jay Pharma entered into a Secured Promissory Note, dated January 10, 2020 (the “Note”), by and among Jay Pharma and certain lenders, pursuant to which,
on January 10, 2020, Jay Pharma received aggregate gross proceeds of $1,500,000. Pursuant to the Note, the aggregate obligations of Jay Pharma under the
Note are to automatically, immediately prior to the consummation of the Amalgamation, convert into shares of Jay Pharma common stock, subject to the terms
and provisions of the Note. Pursuant to Note, upon conversion of the term loans made by the lenders subject to the terms of the Note, Jay Pharma is required to
cause Ameri to issue each lender warrants to purchase Ameri Common Stock. Upon consummation of the Amalgamation, Jay Pharma has agreed to cause
Ameri to register the resale of the warrant shares. The Note bears interest at 7% per annum and was due on March 31, 2020.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 4 – NOTES PAYABLE AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE, CONTINUED
 
Notes Payable, continued
 
On May 6, 2020, the Company entered into an amendment to the Note (the “First Note Amendment”). Pursuant to the First Note Amendment, Alpha waived
previous defaults on the Note, and extended the maturity date of the Note to June 30, 2020. In exchange for the First Note Amendment, the Company and Alpha
agreed that (i) at the Effective Time, Ameri Holdings, Inc. shall issue to the holder of a certain note issued by Jay Pharma, series B warrants (the “Series B
Warrants”) to acquire 8,100,000 shares of common stock of the company resulting from the amalgamation, and (ii) providing for certain registration rights,
pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-4, of the Series B Warrants and the shares issuable upon exercise of the Series B Warrants. The Series B
Warrants shall be exercisable for a period of five years commencing on the ninetieth (90th) day after the later of the last day of the Lock-up Period and leak-out
Period (accelerated or otherwise) set forth in the Lock-up agreement to be executed by the holders of Jay Pharma securities in connection with the
Amalgamation, at a price of $0.01 per share, and shall also be exercisable on a cashless basis.
 
On June 23, 2020, the Company and Alpha entered into a second amendment to the Note (the “Second Note Amendment”). The Second Note Amendment
revised the principal amount of the Note from $1,500,000 to $2,000,000, which was advanced as of the date of the Second Note Amendment. The rights and
securities granted to Alpha under the terms of the Note were extended to the additional $500,000 advance contemplated by the Second Note Amendment
pursuant to the terms of the Second Note Amendment.
 
On August 12, 2020, the Company and Alpha entered into the Third Note Amendment. The Third Note Amendment extended the maturity date to be the earlier
of (a) January 1, 2021 and (b) an event of default that accelerates the maturity of the Note. The Third Note Amendment also revised the Note to account for the
change in structure from an amalgamation to a stock-for-stock exchange offer. As a result, references to the Original Amalgamation Agreement and the
amalgamation were revised to be references to the Tender Agreement and the Offer. The Third Note Amendment also revised the event of default regarding a
failure of the amalgamation to be consummated by March 31, 2020 to be an event of default if the Offer was not consummated by January 1, 2021.
 
NOTE 5 – COMMITMENTS
 
On January 5, 2019, the Company entered into a business advisor services agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the consultant will provide
business advisory, marketing, and investor relations services in exchange for $15,000 per month, of which $7,500 is payable in cash and $7,500 is payable in the
Company’s common shares. On January 6, 2020, the Company terminated its business advisory services agreement and agreed to settle the amounts due
under the agreement by (a) paying $12,500 in cash upon the completion of a bridge financing; and (b) issuing 127,856 shares of the Company’s common stock,
as described in Note 6.
 
On January 1, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Mr. David Stefansky to serve as President and Secretary of the Company to serve until the
closing Amalgamation Agreement. The Company agreed to pay Mr. Stefansky $15,000 per month and future issuance of options to purchase 650,000 shares of
common stock subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. On May 1, 2020, this agreement was terminated (see Note 8).
 
On January 8, 2020, the Company’s Interim Chief Financial Officer resigned, and the Company amended its consulting and advisory agreement to reflect that
resignation. The agreement, as amended, remains in effect and may be terminated with 60 days’ notice. The consulting and advisory firm will continue to provide
accounting and consulting services through 2020.
 
On May 1, 2020, the Company and Mr. David Stefansky terminated Mr. Stefansky’s agreement to serve as President and Secretary of the Company. Mr.
Stefansky will continue to serve as an advisor to the Company until the consummation of the Amalgamation at a rate of $5,000 per month.
 
On May 1, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Mr. Henoch Cohn to serve as the Company’s President and Secretary until the consummation of
the Amalgamation Agreement. The Company will pay Mr. Cohn $10,000 per month.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
 
Authorized Capital
 
The holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any,
as may be declared by the Board of Directors out of legally available funds. Upon the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, holders of common
stock are entitled to share rateably in all assets of the Company that are legally available for distribution. As of September 30, 2020, an unlimited number of
common shares were authorized for issuance.
 
Issuance of Common Stock for Accounts Payable
 
During the nine months ended September 30, 2020, the Company issued 388,483 shares to various vendors in connection with the payment of accounts
payable of $173,482. The shares were valued at the book value of the accounts payable, as that value was more readily determinable.
 
Shares Issued in Exchange for Services
 
During the nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Company issued 172,297 shares to consultants in exchange for services. The Company valued these
shares at $88,465.
 
September Private Placement
 
On September 25, 2020, the Company issued 166,667 shares of its common stock for gross proceeds of $250,000 ($1.50 per share) and net proceeds of
$227,500.
 
Conversion of Related Party Advance
 
On July 21, 2020, the Company issued 1,081,818 shares of common stock in exchange for the February 2019 Note (face value of $66,000), the March 2019
Note (face value of $150,000) and related party advances in the amount of $22,000. Given that the holder of these notes and advances is a related party, this
was treated as a capital transaction and no gain or loss was recognized.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 6 - SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS, CONTINUED
 
Stock Options
 

  
Number of

Shares   

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price
(USD)   

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

(USD)   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term (years)   
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value (USD)  
                
Outstanding – January 1, 2020   3,604,348  $ 0.44  $ 0.16         
Outstanding – September 30, 2020   3,604,348  $ 0.44  $ 0.16   7.5  $ - 
                     
Exercisable at September 30, 2020   2,450,736  $ 0.44  $ 0.16   7.5  $ - 

 
The Company’s stock based compensation expense related to stock options for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 was $0 and $538,598,
respectively. As of September 30, 2020, the Company had $166,734 in unamortized stock option expense. All unamortized stock option expense is related to
performance obligations which have not yet been achieved.
 
Warrants
 
On February 24, 2020, the Company issued warrants to purchase 130,920 shares of common stock to the lender of the February 2020 Note. The warrants are
exercisable at $0.38 USD ($0.50 CAD) per share, are fully vested at the date of issuance, and expire on February 24, 2025. The warrants were accounted for as
a component of equity, as the instrument contains no features which would preclude such classification. As discussed in Note 4, the warrants were recorded as a
discount on the note payable in the amount of $50,000 and amortized over the term of the note.
 
The following table summarizes information about shares issuable under warrants outstanding at September 30, 2020:
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Warrant 
shares 

outstanding   

Weighted 
average

exercise price
(USD)   

Weighted
average

remaining life   Intrinsic value  
Outstanding at January 1, 2020   1,373,673  $ 0.68         
Issued   130,920  $ 0.38         
Outstanding at September 30, 2020   1,504,593  $ 0.64   1.35  $ - 

                 
Exercisable at September 30, 2020   1,504,593  $ 0.64   1.35  $ - 
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 7 – AMALGAMATION AGREEMENT
 
On January 10, 2020, the Company entered into an amalgamation agreement (the “Amalgamation Agreement”) with Jay Pharma Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger
Sub”), a wholly owned subsidiary of AmeriHoldings, Inc. (“Ameri”), and Jay Pharma Exchange Co, Inc. (“ExchangeCo”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ameri. The
Amalgamation Agreement provides that the Company will merge into Merger Sub and be amalgamated and operate as one company. The shareholders of the
Company will own approximately 84% of the post-closing company’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock.
 
The Amalgamation Agreement will automatically be terminated if the amalgamation is not completed within 180 days.
 
Simultaneously with the execution of the Amalgamation Agreement, Jay Pharma entered into a Secured Promissory Note, dated January 10, 2020 (the “Note”),
by and among Jay Pharma and certain lenders, pursuant to which, on January 10, 2020, Jay Pharma received aggregate gross proceeds of $1,500,000.
Pursuant to the Note, the aggregate obligations of Jay Pharma under the Note are to automatically, immediately prior to the consummation of the Amalgamation,
convert into shares of Jay Pharma common stock, subject to the terms and provisions of the Note. Pursuant to Note, upon conversion of the term loans made by
the lenders subject to the terms of the Note, Jay Pharma is required to cause Ameri to issue each lender warrants to purchase Ameri Common Stock. Upon
consummation of the Amalgamation, Jay Pharma has agreed to cause Ameri to register the resale of the warrant shares. The Note bears interest at 7% per
annum and was due on March 31, 2020.
 
Prior to the execution and delivery of the Amalgamation Agreement, certain investors have entered into agreements with Jay Pharma pursuant to which such
investors have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions of such agreements, to purchase, immediately prior to the consummation of the Amalgamation,
shares of Jay Pharma’s common stock (or common stock equivalents) and warrants to purchase Jay Pharma’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$3.5 million. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by such agreements is conditioned upon the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in
the Amalgamation Agreement. After consummation of the Amalgamation, Jay Pharma has agreed to cause Ameri to register the resale of the Ameri Common
Stock issued and issuable pursuant to the warrants issued to the investors in the Jay Pre-Closing Financing.
 
Contemporaneously with the Amalgamation Agreement, the Company entered into sublicense agreements with Tikkun Pharma, Inc. (“Tikkun Pharma”). The
sublicense agreements with Tikkun Pharma allows the Company to utilize (a) Tikkun Pharma’s sublicense with TOP for certain autoimmune applications, and (b)
acquire and use Tikkun Pharma’s internally developing intellectual property, branding, and formulations in regards to Skincare.
 
In connection with the transaction with Tikkun Pharma, the Company advanced Tikkun Pharma $46,797 in order for them to pay for certain legal costs for the
transaction. The advance will be repaid upon consummation of the transaction. This advance is included in Related Party Receivable on the Company’s
unaudited condensed balance sheet.
 
On April 20, 2020, the Company received a notice from the lenders of the Note, stating that the Company was in default for not closing the amalgamation with
Ameri by March 31, 2020, and that the entire Note was due in full. On May 6 and May 26, 2020, the Company and Alpha amended the Note and the
Amalgamation Agreement, as described in below.
 
On May 6, 2020, the Company entered into an Amalgamation Amendment Agreement (the “Amendment”) to amend the Amalgamation Agreement described in
Note 8. Pursuant to the Amendment, the parties agreed that (i) at the Effective Time, Ameri Holdings, Inc. shall issue to the holder of a certain note issued by
Jay Pharma, series B warrants (the “Series B Warrants”) to acquire 8,100,000 shares of common stock of the company resulting from the amalgamation, and (ii)
providing for certain registration rights, pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-4, of the Series B Warrants and the shares issuable upon exercise of the
Series B Warrants. The Series B Warrants shall be exercisable for a period of five years commencing on the ninetieth (90th) day after the later of the last day of
the Lock-up Period and leak-out Period (accelerated or otherwise) set forth in the Lock-up agreement to be executed by the holders of Jay Pharma securities in
connection with the Amalgamation, at a price of $0.01 per share, and shall also be exercisable on a cashless basis.
 
On May 26, 2020, the Company entered into the second amendment to the Amalgamation Agreement (the “Second Amendment”) to amend the Amalgamation
Agreement described in Note 7. The purpose of this amendment was to clarify that the Series B Warrants were to acquire 8,100,000 shares of common stock
Jay Pharma (to be approximately 3,675,035 shares of common stock of the company resulting from the Amalgamation), as well as to clarify the exchange ratio
already agreed upon.
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JAY PHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)
 
NOTE 7 – AMALGAMATION AGREEMENT, CONTINUED
 
On June 23, 2020, the Company and Alpha entered into a second amendment to the Alpha Note (the “Second Note Amendment”). The Second Note
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Amendment revised the principal amount of the Alpha Note from $1,500,000 to $2,000,000, which was advanced as of the date of the Second Note Amendment.
The rights and securities granted to Alpha under the terms of the Alpha Note were extended to the additional $500,000 advance contemplated by the Second
Note Amendment pursuant to the terms of the Second Note Amendment.
 
On August 12, 2020, Ameri, Jay Pharma, and certain other signatories thereto entered into a tender agreement (as may be amended from time to time, the
“Tender Agreement”), which provides that, among other things, Jay Pharma will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ameri, on the terms and conditions set
forth in the Tender Agreement. The Tender Agreement terminates and replaces in its entirety the original Amalgamation Agreement, dated as of January 10,
2020, previously entered into by and among the parties thereto, as described further in Note 7. If the Offer is completed, upon consummation, (i) holders of
outstanding common shares of Jay Pharma other than Alpha will be entitled to receive the number of shares of Resulting Issuer common stock issuable in
accordance with the Exchange Ratio, and (ii) Alpha will be entitled to receive shares of Series B Preferred Stock, which are convertible into shares of Resulting
Issuer common stock subject to a 9.99% beneficial ownership blocker, pursuant to the Alpha Exchange Agreement. Each outstanding Jay Pharma option,
whether vested or unvested, and warrant that has not previously been exercised will exchanged for Resulting Issuer stock options and Resulting Issuer warrants,
in each case convertible into the number of shares of Resulting Issuer common stock equal to the Exchange Ratio. Each outstanding Jay Pharma option,
whether vested or unvested, and warrant that has not previously been exercised will be exchanged for Resulting Issuer stock options and Resulting Issuer
warrants, in each case, convertible into the number of shares of Resulting Issuer common stock equal to the Exchange Ratio.
 
NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
Private placement
 
On December 8, 2020, the Company completed a private placement whereby Alpha invested $300,000 in exchange for 1,000,000 shares of Jay Pharma
common stock and 500,000 warrants to purchase Jay Pharma common stock at a price of $0.30.
 
Closing of Tender Agreement
 
On December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Tender Agreement, by and among Enveric Biosciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Enveric”)
previously known as Ameri, Jay Pharma, and certain other signatories thereto, the Company completed the Offer to purchase all of the outstanding common
shares of Jay Pharma for the number of shares of common stock of Enveric, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) or Series B convertible preferred
stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per share (the “Series B Preferred Stock”), as applicable, equal to the exchange ratio of 0.8849, and Jay Pharma became
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Enveric, on the terms and conditions set forth in the Tender Agreement. The Tender Agreement terminated and replaced in its
entirety the Original Amalgamation Agreement. In connection with the Offer, Enveric changed its name from AMERI Holdings, Inc. to Enveric Biosciences, Inc.
 
Prior to the completion of the Offer, on December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Share Purchase Agreement dated January 10, 2020 (the
“Ameri Share Purchase Agreement”) by and between Ameri and Ameri100 Inc. (“Private Ameri”), Ameri contributed, transferred and conveyed to Private Ameri all
of the issued and outstanding equity interests of the existing subsidiaries of Ameri, constituting the entire business and operations of Ameri and its subsidiaries,
and Private Ameri assumed the liabilities of such subsidiaries, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock of Ameri were redeemed
for an equal number of shares of Series A preferred stock of Private Ameri (collectively, the “Spin-Off”).
 
Immediately following the completion of the Offer, on December 30, 2020, a 1-for-4 reverse stock split of Enveric’s issued and outstanding shares of Common
Stock became effective (the “Reverse Stock Split”).
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Exhibit 99.3
 

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Introduction
 
On December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Tender Offer Support Agreement and Termination of Amalgamation Agreement dated August 12,
2020, as amended by that certain Amendment No. 1 to the Tender Offer Support Agreement and Termination of Amalgamation Agreement dated December 18,
2020 (as amended, the “Tender Agreement”), by and among Enveric Biosciences, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) previously known as AMERI
Holdings, Inc. (“Ameri”), Jay Pharma Inc., a Canada corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“Jay Pharma”), and certain other signatories
thereto, the Company completed a tender offer (the “Offer”) to purchase all of the outstanding common shares of Jay Pharma for the number of shares of
common stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”) or Series B convertible preferred stock of the Company, par value $0.01 per
share (the “Series B Preferred Stock”), as applicable, equal to the exchange ratio of 0.8849, and Jay Pharma became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
on the terms and conditions set forth in the Tender Agreement. The Tender Agreement terminated and replaced in its entirety the original Amalgamation
Agreement, dated as of January 10, 2020, previously entered into by and among the parties thereto (the “Original Amalgamation Agreement”). In connection
with the Offer, the Company changed its name from AMERI Holdings, Inc. to Enveric Biosciences, Inc.
 
Prior to the completion of the Offer, on December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Share Purchase Agreement dated January 10, 2020 (the
“Ameri Share Purchase Agreement”) by and between Ameri and Ameri100 Inc. (“Private Ameri”), Ameri contributed, transferred and conveyed to Private Ameri all
of the issued and outstanding equity interests of the existing subsidiaries of Ameri, constituting the entire business and operations of Ameri and its subsidiaries,
and Private Ameri assumed the liabilities of such subsidiaries, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock of Ameri were redeemed
for an equal number of shares of Series A preferred stock of Private Ameri (collectively, the “Spin-Off”).
 
Immediately following the completion of the Offer, on December 30,  2020, a 1-for-4 reverse stock split of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of
Common Stock became effective (the “Reverse Stock Split”).
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, and for the year ended December
31, 2019, give effect to the Spin-Off and the Offer, and have been prepared under the acquisition method of accounting with Jay Pharma treated as the
accounting acquirer. Jay Pharma is the accounting acquirer based upon the terms of the Offer and other factors, such as the number of shares of Common
Stock and Series B Preferred Stock issued to Jay Pharma shareholders under the Tender Agreement, relative voting rights and the composition of the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) and senior management. The following selected unaudited pro forma condensed financial data also give effect to the
Spin-Off and Reverse Stock Split.
 
You should read the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements presented below in conjunction with:
 
 • The accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements;
 • Ameri’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and the notes relating thereto as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on November 16, 2020;
 • Ameri’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 and the notes relating thereto as filed with SEC on August 12, 2020;
 • Jay Pharma’s unaudited condensed financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and the notes relating thereto, filed as Exhibit

99.2 of this Current Report; and
 • Jay Pharma’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 and the notes, filed as Exhibit 99.1 of this Current Report.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2020 combines the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet of
Ameri as of September 30, 2020 with the unaudited condensed balance sheet of Jay Pharma as of September 30, 2020, giving effect to the Offer, the Spin-Off,
and the Reverse Stock Split as if they had been consummated as of September 30, 2020.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 combines the unaudited condensed
consolidated statement of operations of Ameri for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 with the unaudited condensed statement of operations of Jay
Pharma for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, giving effect to the Offer, the Spin-Off, and the Reverse Stock Split as if they had been consummated
on January 1, 2019.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2019 combines the audited consolidated statement of
operations of Ameri for the year ended December 31, 2019 with the audited statement of operations of Jay Pharma for the year ended December 31, 2019,
giving effect to the Offer, the Spin-Off, and the Reverse Stock Split as if they had occurred on January 1, 2019.
 
The historical financial information has been adjusted to give effect to the expected events that are related and/or directly attributable to the transactions, are
factually supportable and are expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results. The adjustments presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements have been identified and presented to provide relevant information necessary for an accurate understanding of the Resulting
Issuer upon consummation of the transactions.
 

1

 
 
The historical financial statements of Ameri and Jay Pharma have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (“GAAP”). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements included herein are prepared in accordance with GAAP. The
application of the acquisition method of accounting is dependent upon certain valuations and other studies that have yet to be completed or have not progressed
to a stage where there is sufficient information for a definitive measurement. Accordingly, the pro forma adjustments are preliminary, subject to further revision as
additional information becomes available and additional analyses are performed, and have been made solely for the purpose of providing unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial statements. Ultimately, final valuations and studies will be performed. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the
final acquisition accounting may occur and these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined
financial statements and the Company’s future financial position and results of operations. Fair values determined as of the assumed acquisition dates are based
on the most recently available information. To the extent there are significant changes to the Company’s business, or as new information becomes available, the
assumptions and estimates herein could change significantly.

 
The Offer is being accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with GAAP. Under this method of accounting, Ameri is treated as the “acquired”
company for financial reporting purposes. This determination was primarily based on Jay Pharma comprising the ongoing operations of the Company, Jay
Pharma senior management comprising the senior management of the Company, and that the former owners and management of Jay Pharma have control of
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the Board and management of the Company after the Offer. In accordance with guidance applicable to these circumstances, the Offer is considered a capital
transaction in substance. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Offer is being treated as the equivalent of Jay Pharma issuing shares for the net assets of
Ameri, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of Ameri are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. Operations
prior to the Offer are those of Jay Pharma.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations do not include (i) the impacts of any revenue, cost or other operating synergies that
may result from the Offer or any related restructuring costs; and (ii) certain amounts resulting from the Offer that were determined to be of a non-recurring nature.
 
All share and per share amounts for all periods presented in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and related notes have been
adjusted retroactively, where applicable, to reflect the Reverse Stock Split.
 
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements presented are based on the assumptions and adjustments described in the accompanying
notes. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and do not purport to represent what the
financial position or results of operations would have been if the Offer, the Spin-Off, or the Reverse Stock Split had been completed as of the dates indicated in
the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
 

  Historical AMERI   Historical   Pro forma merger adjustments  
Pro forma as

adjusted  
  Holdings   Jay Pharma   Debit   Note Credit   Note   
  Note 1   Note 2               

ASSETS                         
                         
Current assets:                         
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,840,097  $ 340,898  $ 2,650,000  7  $ 2,190,097  6  $ 2,855,898 
           275,000  11   900,000  8     
                 160,000  10     
Accounts receivable   7,563,451   -         7,563,451  6   - 
Related party receivable   -   67,085               67,085 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   901,451   64,182         901,451  6   64,182 
Total current assets   11,304,999   472,165   2,875,000     11,654,999     2,987,165 
Property, plant and equipment   91,289   -         91,289  6   - 
Intangible assets, net   1,950,766   -   3,692,809  9   1,950,766  6   3,692,809 
Goodwill   13,729,770   -         13,729,770  6   - 
Operating lease right of use asset, net   874,606             874,606  6   - 
Deferred income tax assets, net   42,181   -         42,181  6   - 
Total assets  $ 27,993,611  $ 472,165  $ 6,567,809    $ 28,343,611    $ 6,679,974 

                         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’

EQUITY                         
                         
Current liabilities:                         
Line of credit  $ 3,097,009  $ -  $ 3,097,009  6        $ - 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   6,490,680   1,633,398   27,255  3         811,832 
           2,532  4           
           6,490,680  6           
           85,189  7           
           706,590  8           
Operating lease liability   886,935   -   886,935  6         - 
Advance from related party   -   -               - 
Notes payable   1,879,500   2,077,925   44,000  4         33,925 
           1,879,500  6           
           2,000,000  7           
Convertible notes payable   -   350,000   300,000  3         - 
           50,000  4           
Debentures   1,818,321   -   1,818,321  6         - 
Dividend payable - Preferred stock   645,425   -   645,425  6         - 
Total liabilities   14,817,870   4,061,323   18,033,436     -     845,757 
                         
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):                         
Preferred Stock   4,249   -   4,249  6   132,178  7   132,178 
Common Stock   57,370   -   -     69,086  5   149,375 
                 22,919  9     
Additional paid-in capital   58,218,620   3,829,609   69,086  5   327,255  3   13,324,841 
           57,625,990  6   96,532  4     
                 4,603,011  7     
                 3,669,890  9     
                 275,000  11     
Accumulated deficit   (45,156,263)   (7,377,068)   193,410  8   45,156,263  6   (7,730,478)
           160,000  10           
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Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss)   51,765   (41,699)   51,765  6         (41,699)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)   13,175,741   (3,589,158)   58,104,500     54,352,134     5,844,217 
                         
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
(deficit)  $ 27,993,611  $ 472,165  $ 76 ,137,936    $ 54,352,134    $ 6,679,974 

 
See footnotes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
 

  
AMERI

Holdings   Jay Pharma   Pro forma merger adjustments   
Pro forma as

adjusted  

  

Historical for
the nine months

ended
September 30,

2020   

Historical for
the nine

months ended
September 30,

2020   Adjustment   Note     
  Note A   Note B           
                
Revenue   26,340,499   -   (26,340,499)   C    - 
Cost of revenue   20,753,306   -   (20,753,306)   C    - 
Gross profit   5,587,193   -   (5,587,193)       - 
                     
Operating expenses:                     
Selling, General & Administrative  $ 7,845,160  $ 2,094,044   (7,845,160)   C    2,281,544 
           187,500   D      
Depreciation and amortization   1,649,819   -   (1,649,819)   C    692,402 
           692,402   F      
Loss from operations   (3,907,786)   (2,094,044)   3,027,884       (2,973,946)
                     
Other expense:                     
Interest expense   399,813   388,143   (399,813)   C    - 
           (388,143)   E      
Total other expense   399,813   (388,143)   (787,956)       - 
                     
Net income (loss) before income taxes   (4,307,599)   (2,482,187)   2,239,928       (2,973,946)
                     
Income tax benefit   11,520   -   (11,520)   C    - 
                     
Net income (loss) after income taxes   (4,319,119)   (2,482,187)   2,228,408       (2,973,946)
                     
Dividend on preferred stock   325,127   -   (325,127)   C    - 
                     
Net income (loss) attributable to common stock holders   (4,644,246)   (2,482,187)   1,903,281       (2,973,946)
                     
Foreign currency translation adjustment   (8,247)   (30,077)   8,247   C    (30,077)
                     
Comprehensive Loss  $ (4,652,493)  $ (2,512,264)  $ 1,911,528      $ (3,004,023)
                     
Net loss and net loss attributable to common
stockholders  $ (4,644,246)  $ (2,482,187)  $ 1,903,281      $ (2,973,946)
                     
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
- basic and diluted  $ (4.45)  $ (0.10)          $ (0.26)

                     
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding used
in net loss per share attributable to common stock
holders - basic and diluted   1,043,132   25,916,419   (15,671,525)   G    11,288,026 

 
See footnotes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
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AMERI

Holdings   Jay Pharma   Pro forma merger adjustments   
Pro forma as

adjusted  

  

Historical for
the year ended
December 31,

2019   

Historical for
the year ended
December 31,

2019   Adjustment   Note     
  Note AA  Note BB          
                
Revenue   39,914,675   -   (39,914,675)   CC    - 
Cost of revenue   31,763,955   -   (31,763,955)   CC    - 
Gross profit   8,150,720   -   (8,150,720)       - 
                     
Operating expenses:                     
Selling, General & Administrative   12,210,317   2,296,534   (12,210,317)   CC    2,546,534 
           250,000   DD      
Depreciation and amortization   2,265,297   -   (2,265,297)   CC    923,202 
           923,202   FF      
Loss from operations   (6,324,894)   (2,296,534)   5,151,692       (3,469,736)
                     
Other expense:                     
Interest expense   694,926   81,823   (694,926)   CC    - 
           (81,823)   EE      
Loss on extinguishment   -   32,316   -   EE    32,316 
Changes in fair value of warranty liability   (1,796,174)   -   1,796,174   CC    - 
Other income (expense), net   (4,540)   -   4,540   CC    - 
Total other expense   (1,105,788)   114,139   1,023,965       32,316 
                     
Net income (loss) before income taxes   (5,219,106)   (2,410,673)   6,175,657       (3,437,420)
                     
Income tax benefit   388,657   -   (388,657)   CC    - 
                     
Net income (loss) after income taxes   (5,607,763)   (2,410,673)   5,787,000       (3,437,420)
                     
Dividend on preferred stock   426,003   -   (426,003)   CC    - 
                     
Net income (loss) attributable to common stock holders   (6,033,766)   (2,410,673)   5,360,997       (3,437,420)
                     
Foreign currency translation adjustment   (26,985)   (6,667)   26,985   CC    (6,667)
                     
Comprehensive Loss  $ (6,060,751)  $ (2,417,340)  $ 5,387,982      $ (3,444,087)

                     
Net loss and net loss attributable to common
stockholders  $ (6,033,766)  $ (2,410,673)  $ 5,360,997      $ (3,437,420)
                     
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
- basic and diluted  $ (11.34)  $ (0.10)          $ (0.32)

                     
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding used
in net loss per share attributable to common stock
holders - basic and diluted   532,202   25,085,980   (15,024,800)   GG    10,593,382 

 
See footnotes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
I. Business Combination
 

On December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Tender Agreement, the Company completed the Offer to purchase all of the outstanding common
shares of Jay Pharma for the number of shares of Common Stock or Series B Preferred Stock, as applicable, equal to the exchange ratio of 0.8849, and Jay
Pharma became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on the terms and conditions set forth in the Tender Agreement. In connection with the Offer, the
Company changed its name from AMERI Holdings, Inc. to Enveric Biosciences, Inc. 
 
Immediately following the completion of the Offer, on December 30, 2020, the Reverse Stock Split became effective.
 
Upon completion of the Offer, (i) holders of outstanding common shares of Jay Pharma (referred to herein as the Jay Pharma equity holders) other than Alpha
Capital Anstalt (“Alpha”) and Bezalel Partners, LLC (“Bezalel”) received the number of shares of Common Stock in accordance with the Exchange Ratio of
0.8849, as calculated in accordance with the Tender Agreement, (ii) each of Alpha and Bezalel, as an investor who would have beneficially owned more than
10.0% of the Company if it received Common Stock, received shares of Series B Preferred Stock, which are convertible into shares of Common Stock subject to
a 9.99% beneficial ownership blocker, pursuant to the terms of the respective exchange agreement entered into by and between Ameri and such stockholder.
Each outstanding Jay Pharma option, whether vested or unvested, and warrant that had not previously been exercised was exchanged for Company stock
options and Company warrants, in each case convertible into the number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Exchange Ratio.
 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is non-voting and is convertible into one share of Common Stock (subject to adjustment) at any time at the option of the
holder, provided that each holder would be prohibited from converting Series B Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock if, as a result of such conversion,
any such holder, together with its affiliates, would own more than 9.99% of the total number of shares of Common Stock then issued and outstanding. This
limitation may be waived with respect to a holder upon such holder’s provision of not less than 61 days’ prior written notice to the Company. Shares of Series B
Preferred Stock are not entitled to receive any dividends, unless and until specifically declared by the Board. However, holders of Series B Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive dividends on shares of Series B Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if-converted-to-Common Stock basis) to and in the same form as dividends
actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when such dividends are specifically declared by the Board. The Company will have no right to require a holder to
surrender its Series B Preferred Stock for redemption. Shares of Series B Preferred Stock will not otherwise be entitled to any redemption rights, or mandatory
sinking fund or analogous fund provisions.
 
Upon completion of the Offer and the transactions contemplated in the Tender Agreement, but without giving effect to the issuance of the Series B Warrants to
purchase 1,791,923 shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $0.01 per share to Alpha following the completion of the Offer, (i) Jay
Pharma equity holders, including those who received Series B Preferred Stock in the Offer, own approximately 82.3% of the outstanding equity of the Company,
assuming conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, (ii) the Ameri equity holders at the time of the completion of the Offer own approximately 14.5% of the
outstanding equity of the Company, and (iii) the financial advisor to Jay Pharma and Ameri owns approximately 3.2% of the outstanding equity of the Company. 
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
As a significant investor in Jay Pharma, Alpha received Series B Preferred Stock in the Offer instead of Common Stock, as well as Series B Warrants with a
nominal exercise price, which were issued to Alpha following the completion of the Offer to account for an adjustment in pricing of the transactions in light of
global economic conditions. Because the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into Common Stock at any time for no consideration, such shares have been
included in basic earnings per share. The Series B Warrants are accounted for as a cost of equity as part of the capital issuance. The estimated fair value implied
for shares of the Company based on the series of transactions with Alpha is $1.62 per share, which is equal to the $5,300,000 investment made by Alpha
divided by 3,262,907, or the number of post-Reverse Stock Split shares of Series B Preferred Stock (convertible into Common Stock) that Alpha received in the
Offer.

 
Simultaneously with the execution of the Original Amalgamation Agreement, Jay Pharma issued a Secured Promissory Note, dated January 10, 2020 (the
“Original Note”), to Alpha, pursuant to which, on January 10, 2020, Jay Pharma received a $1,500,000 loan from Alpha. The Original Note was amended to
reflect an additional investment of $500,000, resulting in a total principal amount of $2,000,000. The Original Note was further amended on August 12, 2020, to
account for the termination of the Original Amalgamation Agreement and the change in the structure of the transaction from an amalgamation to a stock-for-
stock exchange offer (as amended, the “Note”). Upon the closing of the Offer, the Note was converted into the right to receive 2,473,848 common shares of Jay
Pharma and warrants to purchase 2,333,970 common shares of Jay Pharma at an exercise price of $1.03 per share immediately prior to the Offer. In connection
with the Offer, such common shares and warrants of Jay Pharma acquired by Alpha upon conversion of the Note were converted into the right to receive (i)
547,278 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are convertible into up to 547,278 shares of Common Stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Stock Split, and
(ii) warrants to purchase up to 516,333 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.64 per share, after giving effect to the Reverse Stock Split.
 
Alpha also acquired 3,500,954 common shares of Jay Pharma and warrants to purchase 3,500,954 common shares of Jay Pharma at an exercise price of $1.03
per share, immediately prior to the Offer, in connection with the $3 million private placement completed prior to the completion of the Offer (the “Alpha
Investment”). In connection with the Offer, such common shares and warrants of Jay Pharma acquired by Alpha in the Alpha Investment were converted into, as
applicable, the right to receive (i) 774,499 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are convertible into up to 774,499 shares of Common Stock, after giving effect
to the Reverse Stock Split, and (ii) warrants to purchase up to 774,499 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $4.64 per share, after giving effect to the
Reverse Stock Split.
 
On December 4, 2020, Jay Pharma and Alpha executed a securities purchase agreement whereby Alpha purchased an additional 1,000,000 common shares of
Jay Pharma and warrants to purchase 500,000 common shares of Jay Pharma at an exercise price of $0.30 per share for an aggregate purchase price of
$300,000 (the “Alpha December Investment”). In connection with the Offer, such shares were exchanged for 221,225 shares of Common Stock, and such
warrants were exchanged for warrants to purchase 110,613 shares of Common Stock at $1.36 per share.
 
Additionally, at the effective time of the Offer, the Company issued five-year warrants (the “Series B Warrants”) to purchase 1,791,923 shares of common stock
of the Company at an exercise price of $0.01 to Alpha, after giving effect to the Reverse Stock Split. The number of shares of common stock of the Company
issuable upon the exercise of the Series B Warrants is equal to the product of (i) 8,100,000 and (ii) the Exchange Ratio of 0.8849, post-Reverse Stock Split.
 
After giving effect to the conversion of its Series B Preferred Stock, the warrants issued to Alpha in connection with the Alpha Investment and the Alpha Bridge
Loan and the Series B Warrants, Alpha’s total ownership interest in the Company will be 5,008,078 common shares, or 33.9%, without giving effect to the
beneficial ownership limitations in its Series B Preferred Stock. However, under the terms of each of such securities, Alpha may not convert such security to the
extent such conversion would cause Alpha, together with its affiliates, to beneficially own a number of shares of Common Stock which would exceed 9.99% of
the Common Stock then issued and outstanding following such exercise.
 
Intellectual Property Acquisition
 
In connection with the Offer, Jay Pharma entered into a series of assignment and assumption agreements with affiliates of a third party, Tikkun Pharma, Inc.
(“Tikkun”), pursuant to which, on October 2, 2020, Tikkun assigned to Jay Pharma all of Tikkun’s (i) rights to certain skin care treatment assets and (ii)
intellectual property rights to certain formulations for the development of therapeutic candidates for the prevention, management and treatment of graft versus
host disease (GVHD) in exchange for an aggregate of 10,360,007 common shares of Jay Pharma.
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
Because Alpha required additional shares of the Company, at no or a nominal cost, for Alpha to consummate the Alpha Bridge Loan and the Alpha Investment at
the planned valuation, Alpha entered into an agreement with Tikkun pursuant to which, immediately following such assignment, Tikkun sold 7,774,463 of these
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common shares of Jay Pharma to Alpha for the nominal aggregate purchase price of $10.00 (the “Alpha Nominal Shares”), leaving Tikkun with 2,585,544
common shares of Jay Pharma (the “Tikkun Shares”). In connection with the Offer, the Tikkun Shares were exchanged for 571,987 shares of Common Stock,
after giving effect to the Reverse Stock Split, and the Alpha Nominal Shares were exchanged for 1,719,906 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are
convertible into up to 1,719,906 shares of Common Stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Stock Split.
 
Spin-Off
 
Prior to the completion of the Offer, on December 30, 2020, pursuant to the previously announced Ameri SharePurchase Agreement, Ameri and Private Ameri
completed the Spin-Off, pursuant to which Ameri contributed, transferred and conveyed to Private Ameri all of the issued and outstanding equity interests of the
existing subsidiaries of Ameri, constituting the entire business and operations of Ameri and its subsidiaries, and Private Ameri assumed the liabilities of such
subsidiaries, and all of the issued and outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock of Ameri were redeemed for an equal number of shares of Series A
preferred stock of Private Ameri.
 
Accounting for the Offer
 
The Offer is accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Under this method of accounting,
Ameri is being treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. This determination was primarily based on Jay Pharma comprising the
ongoing operations of the Company, Jay Pharma senior management comprising the senior management of the Company, and that the former owners and
management of Jay Pharma have control of the Board after the Offer. In accordance with guidance applicable to these circumstances, the Offer is considered to
be a capital transaction in substance. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Offer is being treated as the equivalent of Jay Pharma issuing shares for the net
assets of Ameri, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of Ameri are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.
Operations prior to the Offer are those of Jay Pharma.
 
II. Basis of Pro Forma Presentation
 
The pro forma financial statements were derived from historical financial statements of Ameri and the historical financial statements of Jay Pharma.
 
The historical financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to
the Offer, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the pro forma statement of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results.
The pro forma financial statements reflect the impact of:
 
 • The Spin-Off;
 • The Offer, whereby the Company issued 7,621,052 shares of Common Stock and 262,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are convertible into

262,500 shares of Common Stock in exchange for 35,635,807 common shares of Jay Pharma (excluding the issuance of an aggregate of 3,262,907
shares of Series B Preferred Stock that are convertible into 3,262,907 shares of Common Stock issued in exchange for the Tikkun Shares, the
conversion of the Note, the Alpha Investment, the Alpha December Investment and the Alpha Nominal Shares);

 • The conversion of the Note and the securities issued upon closing of the Alpha Investment, and the exchange of the Alpha December Investment;
 • The acquisition of intellectual property by Jay Pharma from Tikkun in exchange for 10,360,007 common shares of Jay Pharma, of which the 2,585,544

Tikkun Shares were exchanged for 571,987 shares of Common Stock and the 7,774,463 Alpha Nominal Shares assigned to Alpha were exchanged for
1,719,906 shares of the Series B Preferred Stock convertible into 1,719,906 shares of Common Stock; and

 • Other adjustments described in the notes to this section.
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
The following matters have not been reflected in the pro forma financial statements as they do not meet the aforementioned criteria:

 
 • Cost savings (or associated costs to achieve such savings) from operating efficiencies, synergies or other restructuring that could result from the Offer.

The timing and effect of actions associated with integration are currently uncertain.
 

The Offer is being accounted for as a reverse business combination and recapitalization of Jay Pharma, since the former owners of Jay Pharma will control the
post-Offer company. Jay Pharma will be deemed the acquirer and Ameri will be deemed the acquired company for accounting purposes.
 
III. Pro Forma Adjustments
 
The following pro forma adjustments give effect to the Offer:
 
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet – as of September 30, 2020
 

Note 1 Derived from the Ameri financial statements as of September 30, 2020, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on
November 16, 2020.
 
Note 2 Derived from the Jay Pharma financial statements as of September 30, 2020, included as Exhibit 99.2 in this Current Report.

 
Pro forma adjustments:
 

Note 3 To record the conversion of Jay Pharma’s outstanding convertible notes with a face value of $300,000 and the related accrued interest of $22,671 into
856,698 common shares of Jay Pharma.

 
  Debit   Credit  

Convertible notes payable  $ 300,000    
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   27,255     
Additional paid-in capital      327,255 
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Note 4 To record the conversion of Jay Pharma’s notes payable issued in December of 2019 and February of 2020 outstanding with an aggregate principal
amount of $94,000 into 360,337 common shares of Jay Pharma.

 
  Debit   Credit  

Notes payable  $ 44,000    
Convertible notes payable   50,000     
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   2,532     
Additional paid-in-capital       96,532 

 
Note 5 To record the issuance of 6,908,577 shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01, in exchange for 31,228,644 Jay Pharma common shares, at the
exchange rate of 0.8849.
 

  Debit   Credit  
Additional paid-in capital  $ 69,086    
Common stock      $ 69,086 
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet – as of September 30, 2020 continued
 
Pro forma adjustments, continued

 
Note 6 To record the Spin-Off and the recapitalization of Ameri’s equity.
 

  Debit   Credit  
Line of credit  $ 3,097,009    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   6,490,680     
Operating lease liability   886,935     
Notes payable   1,879,500     
Debentures   1,818,321     
Short term loans   1,000,000     
Dividend payable – preferred stock   645,425     
Preferred stock   4,249     
Accumulated other comprehensive income   51,765     
Additional paid-in capital   57,625,990     
Cash and cash equivalents      $ 2,190,097 
Accounts receivable       7,563,451 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       901,451 
Property, plant, and equipment       91,289 
Intangible assets, net       1,950,766 
Goodwill       13,729,770 
Operating lease right of use asset, net       874,606 
Deferred income tax assets, net       42,181 
Accumulated deficit       45,156,263 

 
Note 7 To record the proceeds from the sale of common stock to Alpha of $3,000,000, net of estimated offering and placement costs of $362,500 and the
conversion of the Note of $2,000,000 (and related accrued interest of $85,189 as of September 30, 2020), in exchange for 1,321,776 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock.
 

  Debit   Credit  
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 2,650,000    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   85,189     
Notes payable   2,000,000     
Series B Preferred Stock      $ 132,178 
Additional paid-in capital       4,603,011 
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet – as of September 30, 2020 continued
 

Pro forma adjustments, continued
 
Note 8 To record the advisory, legal, accounting and other expenses of the Offer, not including offering and placement costs recorded in Note 7. These
costs are estimated to be $700,000 of legal expenses, $300,000 of accounting and auditing expenses, and $200,000 of other expenses.
 

  Debit   Credit  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $ 706,590    
Accumulated deficit   193,410     
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Cash and cash equivalents      $ 900,000 
 

Note 9 To record the acquisition by Jay Pharma of the intellectual property from Tikkun in exchange for 2,291,893 shares of Common Stock. The fair value
of the intellectual property was based on a weighted average third-party valuation of the intellectual property and the implicit value of the shares issued to
Tikkun based on the price Alpha paid for its shares. The amount that will ultimately be recorded may differ materially from this preliminary estimate. The
estimate useful life of the intellectual property is 4 years. The value of the intellectual property will be amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life.

 
  Debit   Credit  
Intangible assets, net  $ 3,692,809    
Common stock      $ 22,919 
Additional paid-in capital       3,669,890 

 
Note 10 To record the bonus to be paid to the Company’s chief executive officer and chief operations officer upon the completion of the Offer.

 
  Debit   Credit  
Accumulated deficit  $ 160,000    
Cash      $ 160,000 

 
Note 11 To record the December 2020 private placement of $300,000 (net of placement costs of $25,000) in exchange for 1,000,000 shares of Jay Pharma
common stock and warrants to purchase 500,000 common shares of Jay Pharma at an exercise price of $0.30 per share.
 

  Debit   Credit  
Cash  $ 275,000    
Additional paid-in capital      $ 275,000 
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ENVERIC BIOSCIENCES, INC.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements

 
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations - For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2020
 

Note A Derived from Ameri’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, filed with the SEC on
November 16, 2020.

 
Note B Derived from Jay Pharma’s unaudited condensed financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, included as Exhibit 99.2 in
this Current Report.

 
Pro forma adjustments:
 

Note C To record the effect of the Spin-Off.
 

Note D To record the pro forma change in compensation for the Company’s chief executive officer, consisting of an increase in salary of $112,500.
 

Note E To record the decrease in pro forma interest expense for the conversion of Jay Pharma’s notes payable and convertible notes payable.
 

Note F To record the amortization of the intellectual property acquired from Tikkun.
 

Note G To record the pro forma effect of the Offer on the weighted average shares outstanding as if the Offer was consummated on January 1, 2019.
 
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations - For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
 

Note AA Derived from Ameri’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, included in the Form S-4.
 

Note BB Derived from Jay Pharma’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, included as Exhibit 99.1 of this Current Report.
 
Pro forma adjustments:
 

Note CC To record the effect of the Spin-Off.
 

Note DD To record the pro forma change in compensation for the Company’s chief executive officer, consisting of an increase in salary of $250,000.
 

Note EE To record the decrease in pro forma interest expense for the conversion of Jay Pharma’s notes payable and convertible notes payable.
 

Note FF To record the amortization of the intellectual property acquired from Tikkun.
 

Note GG To record the pro forma effect of the business combination on the weighted average shares outstanding as if the business combination was
consummated on January 1, 2019.
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IV. Pro Forma Combined Net Loss Per Share
 
The pro forma combined weighted average share outstanding included in the calculation of basic and diluted pro forma combined earnings (loss) per share
consists of the following:
 

  

For the nine 
months ended 

September 30, 2020   
For the Year Ended 
December 31, 2019  

AMERI Holdings, Weighted Average Shares Outstanding   1,043,132   532,202 
         
Jay Pharma, Weighted Average Shares Outstanding   25,916,419   25,085,980 
Exchange Ratio (0.8849)   0.2212   0.2212 
Shares Issued to Jay Pharma shareholders   5,733,359   5,549,645 
         
Conversion of Jay Pharma advances and debt   273,653   273,653 
Acquisition of Tikkun intellectual property   2,291,893   2,291,893 
Series B Preferred Stock  issued to Alpha   1,543,001   1,543,001 
Shares issued to placement agent   402,988   402,988 
         
Weighted average shares outstanding, pro forma combined, basic and diluted   11,288,026   10,593,382 

 
Following the completion of the Offer, warrants to purchase 2,012,101 shares of Common Stock and stock options to purchase 806,563 shares of Common

Stock were outstanding. These instruments were not included in the pro forma combined weighted average shares outstanding, as their inclusion would be anti-
dilutive. The Company did include the Series B Preferred Shares in the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding, as those shares are convertible into
common stock at any time, for no consideration.
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